
 

 

ORANGE BOOK FOR INFORMATION 
 
Venue: Town Hall,  

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham.  S60  2TH 

Date: Wednesday, 13th September, 
2017 

  Time: 2.00 p.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. Health Select Commission (Pages 1 - 11) 
  

 
2. Improving Lives Select Commission (Pages 12 - 28) 
  

 
3. Improving Places Select Commission (Pages 29 - 44) 
  

 
4. Overview and Scrutiny Management Board (Pages 45 - 62) 
  

 
5. Reports for Information (Pages 63 - 81) 
  

 

 



 HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 

 

HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION 
20th July, 2017 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Evans (in the Chair); Councillors Andrews, Bird, R. Elliott, Jarvis, 
Marriott, Short and Whysall and Vicky Farnsworth (SpeakUp). 
 
Councillor Roche, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, Councillor John Turner and 
Tony Clabby (Healthwatch Rotherham) were in attendance at the invitation of the 
Chairman. 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allcock, Ellis, Tweed, Williams 
and Robert Parkin (SpeakUp).  
 
12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 Vicky Farnworth declared a personal interest regarding Learning Disability 

as a member of Speak Up. 
 

13. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

 There were no members of the public and press present at the meeting. 
 

14. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

 • Councillor Marriott – Visit to Rawmarsh School (mental health pilot) 
A positive and interesting meeting took place with school staff who 
explained the work being undertaken and answered a number of 
questions. The children and young people were now coming 
forward.  In some cases parents did not like one-on-one meetings 
so the school had replaced these with a successful coffee morning 
with 12-15 attendees. It was important that the good work 
continued. 
 

• Councillor Elliott – Visit to new Urgent and Emergency Care Centre 
at Rotherham Hospital 
A visit had been organised on 22nd June 2017 prior to the opening, 
which included a comprehensive tour and introductory talk.  It was 
a new and impressive centre built on time and on budget, with 
good décor, equipment and nursing stations.  Clinical Lead Dr Kay 
Stenton and Acting Matron Kerry Barnard explained how A&E staff 
had been consulted on the design and layout of the unit and their 
ideas incorporated. This was a cutting edge facility and one the 
people of Rotherham should be proud of. 

 

• Schools mental health pilot  
Councillor Cusworth would circulate notes from the whole school 
steering group meeting for information. 
 
An information pack had been circulated to Members. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 2A 

 

  

• Yorkshire and Humber Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  
As in previous years the Commission was asked to nominate a 
representative to the Committee. 

 
Resolved:- That the Chair be confirmed as the representative for RMBC to 
the Yorkshire and Humber Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 

15. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 15TH JUNE, 2017  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting of the 
Health Select Commission held on 15th June, 2017.  Members noted that 
with regard to Minute No. 6 the text under key messages should say:- 
 

- Older people play a significant role as care givers 
 
Arising from Minute No. 8 Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(JHOSC) for the Commissioners Working Together Programme, the 
Scrutiny Officer provided the following update: 
 
Children’s Surgery and Anaesthesia 
The Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups approved the 
preferred option for the reconfiguration proposals for children’s surgery 
and anaesthesia on 28th June.  This proposal was for three hubs - 
Doncaster Royal Infirmary, Sheffield Children’s Hospital and Pinderfields 
General Hospital in Wakefield to provide out of hours, emergency surgery 
for certain sub-specialties.   
 
Further work on patient numbers showed that this would impact on a 
relatively small number of children, with the majority of surgical 
procedures carried out locally.  From a total of approximately 11,000 
surgical procedures each year, it would affect between 65 and 106 p.a. 
across the whole area (approximately 14 in Rotherham). 
 
There were no cost savings with the proposal but rather investment was 
required for ambulance transfers and for the Managed Clinical Network 
which would organise and sustain service provision across the area 
through workforce planning and training etc. 
 
The JHOSC would be meeting on 31st July, 2017 to discuss 
implementation and future scrutiny.  There would also be an update on 
timescales for a decision on the proposals for Hyper Acute Stroke, which 
was likely to be in the autumn following further work on developing the 
business case, on costs, workforce implications and wider implications for 
partners. 
 
Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 15th June, 
2017, be approved as a correct record. 

Page 2



 HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 

 

 
16. MEMBERSHIP OF THE HEALTH, WELFARE AND SAFETY PANEL 

2017/2018  

 

 Members would be requested to send expressions of interest to the Chair. 
 

17. ADULT SOCIAL CARE - PROVISIONAL YEAR END PERFORMANCE 

2016-17  

 

 Councillor Roche, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health, 
introduced the agenda item highlighting that all local authorities had to 
produce annual statutory returns.  The performance indicators had to be 
viewed in the wider context where RMBC was in the top quarter/third of 
Adult Social Care directorates nationally and ranked second in Yorkshire 
and Humber on the national statistics.  There were concerns over some 
measures and for some individual measures Rotherham did not compare 
so well with the national figures.  Overall the outcomes were mixed and 
the majority of measures that had declined were the perception 
measures. Perceptions were important as the Service needed to take 
users with it in light of some of the other changes that would be brought in 
to Social Care. 
 
AnneMarie Lubanski, Strategic Director of Adult Care and Housing, and 
Scott Clayton, Performance & Quality Team Manager, presented a report 
outlining the provisional year end 2016-17 Key Performance Indicator 
results for the Adult Social Care elements of the directorate.  
 
The Council had implemented a new case management recording 
system, Liquid Logic in year, with a go live date in December 2016. 
Migration and recording onto the new system highlighted some 
operational and performance reporting challenges.  All national reporting 
requirements were met in relation to 2016-17.  
 
Performance overall had been mixed with approximately one-third of 
measures improving and two-thirds declining. Perception results from 
Service User and Carer surveys accounted for most of the declining 
performance indicators. Some Indicators, for example the Service user 
surveys, had declined since last year but not necessarily over the last two 
years.   
 
Continued improvements to pathways, embedding of user data recording, 
plus enhanced reporting functionality during 2017/18 were being 
delivered. 
 
Year-end benchmarking data would be available later in the year and not 
all the Adult Social Care Outcome Framework (ASCOF) measures had a 
provisional result at this stage as mental health data was awaited from 
RDaSH. 
 
 

Page 3



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 4A 

 

It was important to note that in terms of local waiting times performance 
measures the data had become unreliable as it was not now reported in 
the same way. 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/highlighted:- 
 

• Was any KPI data collected monthly? – Reporting periods varied 
with a mixture of monthly, quarterly (including RDaSH) and annual 
reporting, such as for reablement. 
 

• Where was data recorded regarding people who drop out of the 
system, possibly homeless people or people no longer with us? – 
We work actively with some people so they did not need an 
ongoing personal budget from the Council as they regain 
independence. If people did not meet Service eligibility criteria they 
should be signposted elsewhere, such as to the voluntary sector. 
The Data Protection Act limited data that could be held with 
stringent record procedures.  Data was held for people who had 
passed away.  If people had chosen to move away from 
Rotherham our involvement stopped and hopefully it could also be 
through greater independence and no longer being in service. This 
would be captured in reablement data. 
 

• Measure No. 14 permanent admissions to residential care (18-64) 
covered a large age range, could this be broken down further by 
age, bearing in mind differences in needs at different ages? – The 
indicator was a national one reported to the DWP because of 
benefits.  We would be able to drill down into our data and provide 
the Commission with information on sub-cohorts by age and 
Service user group.  In total for Rotherham this referred to 
approximately 20 people, so a very small actual number. 
 

• Survey sample sizes and response rates as smaller samples would 
be more sensitive to change – Requirements were set nationally 
calculated from the number of people on Service. There had 
probably been some changes in the number of carers recorded on 
the system since the Care Act. 
  
Service users 2015-16 1016 surveys sent out and return rate 41%. 

 Service users 2016-17 1000 surveys sent out and return rate 39%. 
 Carers 2014-15 896 surveys sent out and return rate 46%. 
 Carers 2016-17 702 surveys sent out and return rate 47.4%. 

 

• Although the survey sample sizes were small and the final figures 
were not yet available, there had been a decline on a number of 
measures at a time of ongoing service reconfiguration, such as the 
measures for people with learning disabilities on long term service 
and for social contact. Similarly for the measures for ease of 
access to information about support, suggesting people were 
encountering barriers to accessing information - Councillor Roche 

Page 4



 HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 

 

commented that he was concerned but not surprised by some of 
the responses given that questions were asked about Services that 
people know were in a state of flux and transformation. From 
conversations with carers it was known that some opposed the 
proposed changes for Learning Disability Services, others agreed 
with them and some agreed but wished to wait until their family 
member had been through the system.  Results were likely to 
decline again next time in this time of uncertainty and many false 
rumours were circulating about Learning Disability Services when 
no decisions had yet been made. 
 

• Did surveys go to people in private care homes? – The survey 
sample had to include people in the community and those in receipt 
of 24 hour care with no distinction made between local authority or 
privately operated care. 
 

Following discussion on the report a short presentation entitled Adult 
Social Care – Thematic review of provisional year end performance report 
2016/17 outlined four key themes and how the Performance Indicators 
linked into these. This enabled the Commission to have an overview of 
areas that were doing well and areas where the challenges remained, by 
means of a type of traffic light system. 
 
Theme 1 Prevention & Delay 

 
With regard to the Community Connectors that was interesting in terms of 
the performance measures discussed earlier and further work would be 
needed to get the messages out there. 
 
Performance on delayed discharges from hospital was a challenge 
nationally and although this measure had declined it remained good as 
previously Rotherham had been in the top 20.  
 
 

Page 5



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 6A 

 

Rotherham was doing well on the effectiveness of reablement measure 
(91 days) but the numbers offered the service were low - bottom quartile 
ranking. 
 
Theme 2 Independence 

 
 
One challenge was to move the people from the bottom right quadrant 
using traditional services, including for learning disability, into the top left 
quadrant, resulting in a double benefit. 
 
Theme 3 Personalisation 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 

 

Theme 4 Perception and Experience of Care and Support 

 
 
 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the content of the provisional summary ‘high level’ 
year-end performance results be noted. 
 
(2) That a further report be presented to the Health Select Commission 
January 2018 meeting, showing the final submitted detailed results and 
analysed benchmark comparisons against regional and national data due 
to be published from late Autumn 2017. 
 

18. LEARNING DISABILITY UPDATE  

 

 AnneMarie Lubanski, Strategic Director of Adult Care and Housing, 
provided a verbal update on the work to transform Learning Disability 
Services. 
 
In July a report on Learning Disability and the recommendations within the 
report were agreed at Cabinet and a number of consultations were now 
being planned and would be commencing in early September.  No 
decisions had been taken yet with regard to closure of any centres.  
 
The Directorate had been working with carers of people with learning 
disabilities to keep them well involved. This included two events where 
officers talked through the report with the carers as soon as it had been 
published.  
 
Based on feedback from the earlier consultation, it had been agreed that 
carers would be involved in designing the consultation, alongside 
SpeakUp, together with another organisation the Service hoped to 
procure to provide additional support to people with learning disability 
through the consultations. 
 
 

Page 7



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 8A 

 

Consideration was also being given to the on-line questionnaires and how 
these could be done differently, although there had been over 900 
responses through the various means. The consultation materials could 
be shared with the Commission. 
 
It was stressed that this was not just the in-house Learning Disability offer 
but modernisation of the wider learning disability offer for everyone, 
although this message was sometimes being lost. 
 
Out of 780 people on Service, across internal and external 
commissioning, there were around 20 people with complex needs whose 
packages costed between £160,000 to £250,000 p.a. There was a need 
to start doing things differently for such packages such as trying and 
testing the use of technology as a substitute for direct care. 
 
Other challenges in undergoing this transformation and service 
modernisation, both for Adult Social Care and for families, were 
highlighted, including: 
 
- people with learning disabilities perhaps wanting something 

different to what their families wanted for them   
- the need for sophisticated conversations and being very clear 

about the Mental Capacity Act and who made the decision 
- difficult conversations with families  
- difficulties for families when someone with learning disability or 

autism reached 18 and had the right to choose and the family 
member was no longer their next of kin  

- as much as carers had parity of esteem through the Care Act the 
central focus was what the person wanted 

- how new high cost support packages as people come into service 
may increase budget pressures in Adult Social Care 

 
These were reasons why it was so important that the learning disability 
offer was widely understood. Our money was locked into very traditional 
services and it needed to be reiterated that this was not a quick journey 
but would happen over two to three years. 
 

• Clearly improving the quality of provision and driving up standards 
was important but the other side was the economics, so was cost a 
driver as well given that in the future there will always be people 
with complex need and high cost support packages? – The 
premise of personalisation was about putting the person at the 
centre. Absolutely there would always be people with very complex 
needs, whether through learning disability, brain injury, or drug or 
alcohol related physical complexities and that would be there.  
What was needed as we worked in a different way was to 
maximise the people who did not need those high end services, 
regardless of the cost of those services.  This was why it was about 
getting the front door right and getting reablement right so in the 
end the service was working with the people with the complex high 

Page 8



 HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 

 

end needs, whether safeguarding, physical, mental, emotional or 
psychological. In Rotherham there was a legacy of responding to 
complexity through using residential care and that had resulted in 
too many people aged under 65 in residential care across all 
groups, especially mental health. Costs did come into it but it was 
about maximising the use of the personal budget if a person 
needed one, getting the right information at the right time and 
starting to use technology as a positive. 

 
 Councillor Roche reiterated his concerns regarding national 

cutbacks on Adult Social Care but highlighted that many of the 
changes were positive and we would have wanted to make them 
irrespective of the period of austerity.   Case studies of people 
using direct payments showed positive outcomes. Examples from 
other local authorities such as Wigan had shown it was possible to 
reduce costs and provide a better service. 
 

• Consultation needed to involve people with autism as well as 
people with learning disability and some people had found the 
previous questionnaire difficult so more easy read questions and 
better explanation would be helpful - One of the challenges in 
Rotherham was that people with autism and people with learning 
disability tended to be lumped together and sometimes that was 
right but it had also led to some services not being designed for 
people with autism.  The Strategic Director would be chairing the 
first Autism Partnership Board meeting on 20th July, 2017. Initial 
work would focus on increasing awareness of autism system-wide 
as overall it was agreed there was a lack of confidence in working 
with people with autism.   

 
Resolved:- That the Health Select Commission receive further updates as 
the work progresses. 
 
With regard to wider work on Learning Disability Services Vicky 
Farnsworth provided a brief update on the work of the Transforming Care 
Partnership across the sub-region. SpeakUp was closely involved as both 
Vicky and Robert Parkin sat on the panel as experts by experience. A lot 
of good work had been carried out although there was still more to be 
done in relation to people with learning disability or autism moving out of 
hospital and back into the community. 
 

19. HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION WORK PROGRAMME  

 

 Janet Spurling, Scrutiny Officer, presented a report setting out a detailed 
draft work programme for 2017-18 and provisional memberships for the 
three NHS Quality Account sub-groups. 
 
Health and Social Care Services were undergoing transformation, 
including closer integration through joint commissioning, joint posts, 
locality working and multi-disciplinary teams. This work was an important 

Page 9



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 10A 

 

long term programme that the Health Select Commission had been 
scrutinising since 2015-16 and would continue to be rolled out over the 
next few years. 
 
Overall performance of health partners was scrutinised through their 
quality accounts, with three sub-groups formed for this purpose.  Their 
work would be supplemented by the quarterly meetings of the Chair and 
Vice-Chair with the Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust; Rotherham, 
Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust; and Rotherham 
Clinical Commissioning Group, which have been in place since 2014-
2015. 
 
The overall priorities for 2017-18 were: 
 

• Rotherham Place Plan – health and social care integration 

• Adult Social Care performance and development programme 

• Learning Disability 

• Child and Adolescent Mental Health  
plus 

• NHS Commissioners Working Together Programme  
(through the JHOSC) 

 
Attention was drawn to items in the work programme that linked in with 
issues raised earlier in the meeting such as implementation of the Carers’ 
Strategy and Learning Disability transformation. 
 
The April meeting had been earmarked for a spotlight review with a theme 
to be determined by the Commission. However following a recent seminar 
on Care Homes and the establishment of a new Quality Board under the 
auspices of the Health and Wellbeing Board, this could present an 
opportunity to consider how that work was progressing. 
 
Councillor Roche confirmed that with regard to the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy in September this would be a good opportunity for the 
Commission to be involved at a very early stage in the refresh. 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the draft work programme for 2017-18 be approved. 
  
(2) That the proposed membership for the quality account sub-groups for 
2017-18 be approved. 
 
(3) That it be noted that if any urgent items emerge during the year this 
might necessitate a review and re-prioritisation of the work programme.  
 

20. NOTES OF FROM QUARTERLY BRIEFING WITH HEALTH PARTNERS  

 

 The summary of discussions at the quarterly briefing with health partners  
held on 4th May, 2017, was noted. 
 
 

Page 10



 HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 20/07/17 

 

21. HEALTHWATCH ROTHERHAM - ISSUES  

 

 Healthwatch had lobbied Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group and 
the Council to produce an Autism Strategy and although not yet in place 
the new Autism Partnership Board was a first step.   
 
Councillor Roche confirmed he would report back to the Commission on 
progress in developing the Autism Strategy. 
 
The Care Quality Commission were undertaking a national review of Child 
and Adolescent Mental Health Services which was expected to lead 
swiftly to a Green Paper. Tony Clabby had been asked to sit on the expert 
advisory group. 
 
Healthwatch sat on the Safeguarding Adults Board and part of their 
contribution to the Strategy was a guide to Lasting Power of Attorney, a 
much needed tool as people do not make provision and plan ahead for 
difficult decisions around care. 
 
Hard copies of the Healthwatch Annual Report were circulated and it was 
available on the link below: 
 
http://healthwatchrotherham.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/Annual-
Report-2016-17-Final.pdf  
 

22. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  

 

 Councillor Roche confirmed that new Sensory Impairment Centre on Ship 
Hill would be opening shortly and a visit could be arranged for 
Commission Members. 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 
31st May, 2017, were noted.  
 

23. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 

 Resolved:- That the next meeting of the Health Select Commission be 
held on Thursday, 21st September, 2017, commencing at 9.30 a.m. 
 

 

Page 11



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION 
4th July, 2017 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Clark (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Cusworth, Fenwick-
Green, Khan, Marles, Marriott, Napper, Sansome, Senior and Short. 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allcock, Cooksey, Elliot, 
Jarvis and Pitchley.  
 
56. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 Councillor Jarvis declared a personal interest in Minute No. 08 (CSE Post 

Abuse Services Update) as she was an unpaid trustee for Rotherham 
Rise. 
 
Councillor Senior declared a disclosable pecuniary interest - Minute No. 
08 (CSE Post Abuse Services Update) on the grounds of being a provider 
of practical, emotional support, advocacy and signposting for individuals 
and families. 
 
Ms Jones – Co-opted Members declared a personal interest - Minute No. 
08 (CSE Post Abuse Services Update) on the grounds of being a provider 
of practical, emotional support, advocacy and signposting for individuals 
and families. 
 

57. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

 There were no members of the press or public present at the meeting. 
 

58. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

 Corporate Parenting Panel 
Councillor Cusworth had provided Members of the Select Commission 
with a written summary of the last meeting of the CPP which was 
circulated by email. 
 
Councillor Napper 
Councillor Napper announced that he would no longer be a member of 
the Select Commission. The Chair thanked him for his contribution to 
date.  
 
 

59. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 22ND MARCH 2017  
 

 Resolved:-   
 
(1)  That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Improving Lives 
Select Commission, held on 22nd March, 2017, be approved as a correct 
record for signature by the Chairman. 

Page 12 Agenda Item 2



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

(2)  That an update be provided to the next meeting with regard to social 
worker and team manager vacancies (Minute No. 54 – Children and 
Young People’s Service Performance Report January 2016/17). 
 
(3) That an update be provided to the next meeting on the Liquid Logic 
Case Management System (Minute No. 54 – Children and Young 
People’s Service Performance Report January 2016/17). 
 

60. PERSONAL BUDGET AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION SYSTEM FOR 
DISABLED CHILDREN  
 

 Ms M Jarrett, Service Manager, Children with Disabilities, presented a 
report to support the implementation over the next year of a Children and 
Young People’s Resource Allocation System (RAS) to promote financial 
transparency and to deliver person-centred outcomes for children and 
young people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).  
 
The Children and Families Act (2014) and subsequent Special 
Educational Need and Disabilities (SEND) Code of Practice makes it 
mandatory for Local Authorities to have a Personal Budgets policy and to 
consider, upon request from parents, any instance where a Personal 
Budget could contribute in part or full towards a young person’s 
Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP). 
 
Children’s Disability Services has worked with the leading national 
personalisation charity ‘In-Control’ to develop a RAS which will enable, in 
the first instance, social workers and disability family support workers to 
develop an outcome-based, person-centred plan which is costed to match 
the level of need of the young person. A RAS therefore creates equity of 
provision and an understanding of the resource required to deliver social 
care. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

- The scheme offers clarity and rationale for decisions made about 
resource allocation for disabled children. 

- As part of the implementation of the RAS, each personal budget 
would be reviewed initially on a three monthly, six monthly and 
then, annual cycle to ensure that the package is delivered 
according to plan. Staffing was sufficient to undertake these 
assessments. Should a child’s circumstances change, a swift re-
assessment could be undertaken as required.  

- What happens if families don’t have access to bank accounts – 
exploring pre-payment cards and other mechanisms to support 
families, including giving administration of the direct payment to a 
third party agency who would manage it on the parent’s behalf 

- Work was underway with the transition teams in Adult Services to 
ensure that transition was as ‘seamless’ as possible. 

- Would RAS apply to care-leaver? Depending on their assessed 
needs, care leavers would be entitled to a full package of support.  

Page 13



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

- Direct payment are not part of household income and can be 
recovered if used for other purposes or if child/young person’s 
circumstances change 

- How would over-payments be addressed? These would be dealt 
with promptly and sensitively.  

- Appeals process – the Council’s complaints process was the route 
to progress complaints. 

- Feedback from parents forum – the Parents/Carers Fora gave 
helpful feedback including examples from other authorities; 
suggestions about how to work with vulnerable families, how to 
measure outcomes etc. These suggestions have been included in 
the Personal Budget Policy (attached as Appendix 1) 

- How was the voice of child reflected in this work? Direct feedback 
from children and young has been limited. Some work had taken 
place but further work was planned particularly with young people 
approaching transition but recognised that this was an area for 
development 

- Are there any issues emerging from other local authorities who are 
implementing this scheme. 

- Adult Services have own RAS system and lessons have been 
applied from adults to ensure that the implementation is smooth. 
There is close liaison but have Adults have a different system for 
resources allocation. Have also consulted with Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) as they have adopted a similar 
outcome based support plan. 

 
The Chair thanked Ms Jarrett for her thorough and comprehensive report. 
 
Resolved:-   
 
(1)  That the Cabinet be advised that the recommendations be supported. 
 
(2.) That further work be undertaken to ensure that the ‘voice of the 
child’ is captured in the ongoing monitoring of the implementation of the 
RAS. 
 

61. EARLY HELP: PHASE 2  
 

 Mr D McWilliams, Assistant Director: Early Help, presented a report which 
sought approval for a Whole Service Review for Early Help Service to 
commence, for implementation by April 1, 2018. 
 
What is early help ? 
Early Help is concerned with identifying needs within families early, and 
providing support before problems become complex and more costly. 
Effective early help relies  upon local agencies working together to;  
  
 
 
 

Page 14



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

• identify children and families who would benefit from early help 

• undertake an assessment of the need for early help and   

• provide targeted early help services to address the assessed 
needs of a child and their family which focuses on activity to 
significantly improve the outcomes for the child.  

 
Local authorities, under Section 10 of the Children Act 2004, have a 
responsibility to promote inter-agency cooperation to improve the 
welfare of children. 
   
Guiding Principles 
1. Build on what’s working well 

• Integrated locality working 
• Whole family working: One Family, One Worker, One Plan 
• Work restoratively ( Work ‘with,’ not ‘done too.’) 
• Continuous improvement 
• Value For Money 
• Culture of excellence 

 
2. Whole service review & re-design 

• All staff and managers in scope 
• Reduced Management structure 
• New (fewer) Job roles 
• Clear progression routes 
• Workforce Development: Investing in training, professional 

development 
• Equity and Parity in pay across roles and responsibilities  
• Affordable and sustainable  fit for purpose structure: Low cost / 

High quality 
• Agile workforce, flexible working, responsive to needs and 

expectations of families 
• High quality delivery points, staff bases and negotiated space 

 
3. Achieve our savings target for 2018/19 

• Whole Service Review: Timescales 
• Potential structure / operating model 
• Potential Savings through service redesign 
• Draft structure suggests a 20% saving based on reduction in 

management costs (Head of Service to Band I) 
• A further £150k will be achieved through smarter use of fit for 

purpose buildings and decommissioning or closure of some  
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

− A number of centres currently have historical opening hours. Have 
you reviewed the impact that the reduction in opening hours may 
have in provision? Proposals will be based on footfall and 
participation levels – some provision, included targeted work, may 
be expanded. The redesign proposals will be informed by an 
impact analysis. 

Page 15



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

− The Children’s Commissioner for England recent report suggested 
that 670,000 children are living in families that have vulnerabilities 
and 800,000 children and young people suffer mental health 
disorders. Reassurances were sought that this report would be 
considered as part of the review. 

− What linkages are there between early help provision and 
community involvement teams based in localities?  

− If buildings are closed, savings would be released to the ‘corporate 
pot’  however, there was the potential to utilise school sites more 
efficiently. Potential closure of a building does not mean a 
reductions or loss of the ‘offer,’ just that the provision will be 
targeted. The Early help strategy describes delivery points and 
negotiated space. This will ensure provision is delivered from the 
most appropriate and fit for purpose venues in a locality. 

− Reduced management cost- how will workers be supported? It was 
not proposed to reduce management oversight and supervision of 
frontline workers and their cases. 

− Risk about losing provision? There would be detailed consultations 
about roles and development – need to build skills confident and 
competent workers. Detached work was an area of development to 
ensure that ‘hard-to-reach’ individuals are supported in their 
families. A guarantee was sought that that detached youth workers 
would be part of the consultation. 

− What is the response of partners to these proposals? Partners 
were coproduced the early help strategy and were consulted at the 
start of the year. They are committed to this process and securing 
better outcomes for children and  young people. 

− Assurances were sought that the timescales for consultation and 
implementation were achievable. However, further details on the 
proposals were requested at an early stage in order that the 
implications of these proposals be fully understood. 

 
Resolved:-   
 
(1)  That Cabinet be advised that the recommendations be supported. 

 
(2) That Improving Lives Select Commission be involved in pre-decision 
scrutiny of the proposals at an early stage 
 

62. EVALUATION REPORT: BARNARDO'S REACH OUT SERVICE  
 

 Mr S Hill, Commissioning Officer, CYPS, introduced a briefing paper 
outlining the Council and Barnardo’s partnership with the DFE and KPMG. 
This has led to the successful creation and implementation of an outreach 
service called Reach Out. This project strives to support and protect 
children and young people who at risk of CSE in Rotherham, with shared 
funding from all partners. 
 
 
 

Page 16



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

The Reach Out project is funded for a period of three years 2016 - 18 with 
Rotherham Council contributing £234k per annum alongside partners 
KPMG Foundation Trust (£1,229k), DfE (£500k) and Barnardo’s (£425k). 
 
Most young people referred to the Reach Out service are identified as at 
risk of CSE because of concerns about their ability to identify abusive, 
exploitative behaviour and/or concerns about their ability to keep safe on-
line.  However, there is often a range of other issues underlying these 
concerns, including emotional health/mental wellbeing issues, worries 
about relationships with friends/peers and family as well as unhealthy 
personal and sexual relationships.  

 
The Reach Out Project has delivered the following key areas of work up 
to present: 
 

• Preventative education in schools and other settings (primarily 
delivering the healthy relationship education package ‘Real Love 
Rocks’);  

• Targeted outreach to young people at risk;  

• Direct support to individual young people and their parents. 
 
Barnardo’s is currently forward planning and developing the ReachOut 
Service to ensure sustainability into the future. 
 
The Reach Out service commenced in January 2016 and has now been 
operational for over a year. 
 
Evaluation of the service has been separately funded and is being 
undertaken by Bedfordshire University. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

− The Barnardo’s review and independent evaluation of programme 
by University of indicated high levels of activities with good 
outcomes. 

− How were schools engaged? Is this activity proactive or responding 
to particular issues or concerns? 

− Are all schools signed-up? 

− How is the ‘training-the-trainer’ activity being evaluated to ensure 
that training is high standard? 

 
Resolved:-   
 
(1)  That the briefing be noted. 
 
(2) That a further update be provided in six months’ time outlining: 

− Work underway to evaluate the impact of the training package; 

− A detailed account of work with schools and levels of engagement. 
 

Page 17



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

63. CSE POST ABUSE SERVICES UPDATE  
 

 Mr S Hill, Commissioning Officer, CYPS, introduced a briefing paper 
outlining the current position of RMBC in relation to the provision of Post 
Abuse Support in Rotherham. 
 
Long term post CSE support services for victims, survivors and their 
families in Rotherham that have been commissioned from the 1 July, 
2016 for 3 years, with an option to extend for a further 2 years. 
 
There are two main service areas that have been commissioned which 
provide a range of services to meet the levels of needs identified and also 
to offer a choice to individuals. These services include:- 
 
i. Practical, emotional support and advocacy and 
ii. Evidence based therapeutic interventions. 
 
The demand for post CSE support services from July was estimated 
based on above needs analyses and the number of victims, survivors and 
family members that are currently receiving services including those 
supported by the former BASE Project, funded by Minister of Justice 
(MoJ). The service specification was been developed with direct input 
from people affected by CSE. 
 
A transition plan for victims and survivors currently accessing services 
through organisations that were not re-commissioned was developed in 
line with the arrangements described for step down. Additional capacity 
has been factored into the first year of the long term post CSE contract to 
enable victims and survivors currently receiving support to continue to 
receive support. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

- Given the last needs analysis was undertaken in 2015, are there 
plans to refresh? 

- How long do survivors have to wait to access services? Waiting 
times are an issue for some services however, it is hoped that this 
will be addressed should the NCA ‘Fusion Bid’ be approved. There 
is a good level of joint working between adult services and health 
partners. 

- What contingencies are in place if the ‘Fusion Bid’ is not 
successful? 

- This briefing focuses on services commissioned by the Council, but 
there a number of third sector organisations who provide related 
services which are not reported on. Are all related services mapped 
in Rotherham? How are non-RMBC commissioned services 
monitored and evaluated? 

- Reassurance was sought that survivors are being supported post 
trial as required, particularly as the number of prosecutions have 
increased. 

Page 18



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

- The current services were originally commissioned in 2015 on an 
assumption that demand would decrease, with a corresponding 
reduction in year-by-year funding to reflect this assumption. What 
has been the impact on the funding reductions on voluntary sector 
provision and service users? 

- Once a contract is coming to an end but there is still a requirement 
to provide a service, is the service recommissioned fully or the 
contract extended? 

 
Resolved:-   
 
(1)  That the briefing be noted. 
 
(2) That a further update be provided in six months’ time outlining: 
 

− A map of all provision across Rotherham, with an outline of how 
provision is being quality assured; 

− The impact of funding reductions on voluntary sector provision 
and service users; 

− What contingency is in place if funding bids are unsuccessful; 

− Evidence of post-trial support to survivors; 

− An assessment of the needs analysis to establish if it requires 
refreshing. 

 
64. IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION WORK PROGRAMME AND 

PRIORITISATION  
 

 Ms C Webb Senior Adviser (Scrutiny and Member Development) reported 
that Members of the Improving Lives Select Committee held an informal 
work planning session on May 17, 2017 to consider what items to include 
in the commission’s work programme for the 2017/18 municipal year. In 
doing so, Members gave consideration to the following items which have 
been prioritised: 
 

- CSE  Evaluation of ReachOut Project  
 Post-abuse support - Focus on recovery.  

- Domestic Abuse: update 
- Local Children’s Safeguarding Board Annual Report 
- Adult Safeguarding Annual Report 
- Home-to-School Transport 
- Missing from Home and Education  
- Early Help  
- Improving outcomes for Looked After Children 

 
Resolved (1) That approval be given to the prioritised items within the 
Improving Lives Select Commission’s work programme 2017/18 
 
(2) That the Commission agrees to undertake a scrutiny review on 
improving outcomes for looked-after children (LAC) and care leavers. 
 

Page 19



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 04/07/17  

 

65. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING: -  
 

 Resolved:-  
 
That the next scheduled meeting be held on Tuesday, 25th July, 2017 at 
5.30 p.m. 
 

 

Page 20



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION 
25th July, 2017 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Clark (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Brookes, Cooksey, 
Cusworth, Elliot, Jarvis, Khan, Marles, Pitchley and Julie Turner. 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allcock, Hague, Marriott, 
Sansome, Senior and Short.  
 
68. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 Councillor Jarvis declared a personal interest in Minute No. 16 (Domestic 

Abuse Update) as she was an unpaid trustee for Rotherham Rise. 
 

69. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

 There were no questions from members of the press or public.  
 

70. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

 Corporate Parenting Panel 
Councillor Cusworth provided Members of the Select Commission with a 
written summary of the last meeting of the CPP which was circulated by 
email. Councillor Cusworth also commented on how productive the 
meeting was and thanked the Head of Service for his work in developing 
the work programme. 
 

71. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 4TH JULY, 2017  
 

 Resolved:-  That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Improving 
Lives Select Commission, held on 4th July, 2017, be approved as a 
correct record for signature by the Chair, subject to the following 
corrections: 
 
Present: Councillors Brookes, Khan, Marles and Sansome. 
Apologies for absence: Councillors Cooksey and Elliot. 

 
Minute No. 7 (Evaluation of Barnardo’s Reachout Service) - KPMG’s 
contribution to the project was £1,229k. 
 

72. MEMBERSHIP OF THE HEALTH, WELFARE AND SAFETY PANEL 
2017/2018  
 

 No nominations were received. The Chair asked the Senior Adviser 
(Scrutiny and Member Development) to circulate details to Members of 
this Select Commission and seek expressions of interest. 
 
 
 

Page 21



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

73. DOMESTIC ABUSE UPDATE  
 

 Councillor Hoddinott gave a brief introduction to the report and introduced 
the following officers in attendance for this item:- 
 
Ms. K. Hanson – Assistant Director, Regeneration and Environment 
Mr. S. Barstow - Head of Service, Community Safety, Resilience and 
Emergency Planning 
Mr. S. Parry - Neighbourhood Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour Manager 
Ms. M. Raven - Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator 
 
The incidents of domestic abuse had risen in Rotherham, which followed 
a national trend. Following the discussions at Improving Lives Select 
Commission in December 2016 and the scrutiny review of 2013, 
Councillor Hoddinott outlined progress and areas for further development; 
with all actions from the 2013 scrutiny review listed.  
 
These actions include:  

− The Independent Domestic Violence Advocates (IDVA) Service was 
now permanently funded;  

− The Council had prioritised the elements of the Supporting People 
budget related to domestic abuse; 

− Since December 2016, an audit and ‘top level review’ of Safer 
Rotherham Partnership (SRP) had taken place which had reported 
positively on the direction of travel and a further Peer Review had 
been scheduled later in year; 

− The Domestic Abuse Strategy was not yet in place but was being 
submitted to the SRP Board in August 2016.  Although the Strategy 
had been delayed, an action plan had been developed (attached as 
Appendix A); 

− The Domestic Abuse Priority Group (DAPG) had been re-established 
to lead on this work; 

− More work was required to tackle the issue of perpetrators and 
support to victims at a multi-agency level involving the Council and the 
Police; 

− Further oversight of what provision and how agencies were working 
together, including voluntary sector provision was required; 

− Ensuring that governance and quality assurance were robust. 
 
Attention was drawn to the issues highlighted by Councillor Hoddinott to 
assure Members that the issues highlighted would be addressed in the 
Strategy and were due to discussed at DAPG, with a final draft submitted 
to the SRP Board in August. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

Was there an understanding of why there was an increase in incidents? – 
Rotherham was not unique in terms of a rise in incidents although there 
had also been a historic underreporting of incidents; the Council Plan had 
a priority action to tackle domestic abuse and, rather than monitor levels 
of reporting, the Strategy would now monitor outcomes for victims. 
 
Why had the commissioning of the independent peer review been 
delayed?  - An initial overarching review of community safety was 
undertaken by Blackburn with Darwen Council as a priority. It covered all 
aspects of the Partnership including leadership and governance. A 
secondary review would now be undertaken by Salford Council in light of 
their experience of the Ofsted framework and child-centred focus.  
 
What findings emerged from the “deep dives”?  – The exercise was 
undertaken by Commissioner Ney and Councillor Hoddinott. It was a 
discussion with partners to examine processes; risk assessments; support 
for victims and how perpetrators were dealt with. It also examined how the 
recommendations from the PEEL report were being addressed, 
particularly in relation to appropriate referrals to other agencies. The 
“deep dive” established that there were good services in place but were 
operating in silos rather than holistically. This has been picked up in the 
Strategy to address how partners worked together and ensure that the 
work was quality assured and oversight was in place. 
 
What work was being done to work with individuals at risk of becoming 
perpetrators? – Examples of work were outlined which included the Youth 
Offending Service; Rotherham Rise, Housing and Education. The value of 
promoting healthy relationship as part of the school curriculum was 
reiterated.  
 
Clarification was sought on the status of the Pause Project – The 
Strategic Director of Children’s Services confirmed that a feasibility study 
for the Pause Project had been undertaken but no decision had been 
taken at this point about further engagement in the project. The outcomes 
from the study would be presented to a future meeting of the Select 
Commission.  
 
Further detail was requested on the action plan, particularly in relation to 
what milestones were in place – It was agreed that a synopsis of this 
information would be circulated. Assurance was given that the action plan 
was comprehensive and included all related actions arising from peer 
reviews, audits and “deep dives”, each with specific performance 
measures. The action plan was to be discussed at the DAPG.  
 
Given domestic abuse had been identified as a high priority, could an 
explanation be given about why progress was slow? – There had been 
progress in some areas but this had been unco-ordinated and not guided 
by strategic aims. The Strategy would focus action collectively across 
partners. 
 

Page 23



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

What outcomes had there been from the inclusion of domestic abuse in 
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment? – A written response would be 
provided.  
 
The Community Safety funding had not been utilised for the purposes 
outlined, had this funding been lost? – Whilst the funding had not been 
used for the peer review in 2016, it had been reallocated to partners to 
address a backlog in domestic abuse referrals.  
 
An explanation was requested in respect of how the collective response to 
the perpetrator programme could be improved; in particular further details 
were asked of the approaches taken with male and female perpetrators - 
There was a separate programme run by the Probation Service for 
perpetrators who had been through the criminal justice process. In 
respect of pre-criminal justice process, it had been identified as an area 
for increased support in order to reduce demand in the longer term. An 
example was given of a project which was working with both victims and 
perpetrators with complex support needs. The Police and Crime 
Commissioner had prioritised domestic abuse and county-wide network 
was looking to commission a programme through funding made available 
through the PCC’s office to assist a large number of male and female 
perpetrators.  
 
Further clarification was requested in respect of the county-wide 
perpetrator programme and RMBC’s pro-rata contribution - Discussions 
were underway to ensure that value for money was achieved and 
resources were allocated fairly across each of the participating districts. A 
specification for the programme had been drawn up and invitation for 
tender would be sought shortly. 
 
Assurances were sought that there was sufficient capacity across partner 
agencies to respond to domestic abuse – Capacity to respond was kept 
under review and each of the respective agencies were able to ‘flag up’ 
specific issues at the DAPG. There were broader concerns which had 
been identified in the “deep dives” around backlogs and risks which would 
be addressed in the Strategy and action plans. It was acknowledged that 
there were funding pressures; nationally Domestic Abuse Services had 
been cut with several refuges closing as a result. In Rotherham funding to 
Domestic Abuse Services had been maintained. Examples were also 
given where council services had brought in additional resources and 
voluntary sector partners had successfully bid for external funding.  
 
How was the voice of victim reflected in the Strategy, including those from 
the Asian and Roma communities? A commitment was given to ensuring 
that the voice of victim would be included in the Strategy, however, it was 
acknowledged that further development was required in this area to build 
on the work already underway with voluntary sector partners.  
 
 
 

Page 24



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

In response to a question about poor mental health, it was acknowledged 
that this was a significant factor in domestic abuse, with many cases 
presenting with substance misuse. Examples were given of how this was 
being tackled. 
 
Clarification was requested in respect of the “One Front Door” – This was 
a recommendation of the 2013 scrutiny review; a task and finish group 
had been set up to explore the feasibility of this option. It was anticipated 
that this would provide a consistent service and pathways, minimise 
duplication and lead to fewer people ‘slipping through the net’. 
 
How do victims access service? - The majority of cases go through the 
Police, and the increase in referrals reflected better recording. In addition, 
Rotherham Rise took self-referrals which did not require Police or other 
agency involvement. It was suggested that guidance was re-issued for 
Members and officers about how referrals could be made. 
 
What work was taking place with older people? – The age profile of 
victims and perpetrators was reviewed to ensure that resources were 
allocated appropriately. Adult Safeguarding reviewed the complexity of 
referrals and the IDVAs were located in Adult Services, which facilitated 
closer working. Examples were also given about work with carers. 
 
Clarification was sought about the status of the Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as a single point of access for domestic abuse 
and whether this would apply only to victims with children or extended to 
victims where no children were involved? A further question was asked 
whether the MASH had the capacity to address this general cohort? – It 
was explained that the MASH would address safeguarding issues 
involving children and young people rather than a generic approach. 
However, work was taking place to ensure that pathways were consistent. 
 
Were frontline officers trained to spot the signs of the domestic abuse? - 
An e-learning package had been developed for all staff, with more in-
depth training developed for frontline staff from both RMBC and partner 
agencies. 
 
In summing up, the Chair welcomed that domestic abuse had been 
identified as a clear priority however expressed disappointment about the 
apparent lack of progress in implementing the recommendations from the 
2013 scrutiny review.  
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That an update be provided to the Select  Commission in 
6 months to include:- 
 
- Information about how the voice of the victim was captured in the 

Strategy;  
- Outcomes of the peer review; 
- Details of the perpetrator programme. 
 

Page 25



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

(2)  That further consideration be given to investment in women’s 
empowerment and preventative work in school as part of the Strategy’s 
development.  
 
(3)  That an update be provided outlining progress in addressing the 
recommendations of the PEEL review in relation to South Yorkshire 
Police’s response to domestic abuse.  
 
(4)  That the Strategy be circulated on completion to the Select 
Commission prior to the six month’s update. 
 
(5)  That information be provided on the level of incidents/reports over 
Christmas period.  
 

74. CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES (CYPS) 2016/2017 YEAR 
END PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 

 The Strategic Director of Children and Young People’s Service, with Ms. 
R. Wall, Head of Service Safeguarding and Quality Assurance, and Mrs. 
S. Wilson, Head of Service Performance & Planning, gave a presentation 
which covered the 2016/17 year-end performance in relation to Early Help 
and Family Engagement, Children’s Social Care and Education and Skills: 
 
What is working well 
- Early Help received 3,914 contacts during the last 12 months 

evidencing the improvements made in embedding Early Help 
- Timeliness of engagement with families in Early Help improved from 

18.4% to 53.7%  
- 98% people who completed the Early Help exit survey rated the 

Service as good or excellent 
- The number of re-referrals into Social Care had decreased evidencing 

a more robust approach (30.7% to 27.6%) 
- Following an increase in demand for assessments to be undertaken, a 

new team was established and as a result timescales within 45 days 
improved from 85.9% in February to 92.9% in March 2017 

- The number of children in need (CIN) with an up-to-date plan 
continued to perform well during the year - 93.8% in March 2017 
(82.7% overall during the year) 

- Completion of Initial Child Protection Conferences in 15 day timescale 
remained above national average at 91% and reviews were 
maintained at 100% for 8 months of the year ( 98.6% for the year 
overall) 

- 86.4% of Looked After Children (LAC) visits ( local standard of 4 
weeks) improved from 80.2% in 2015/16 

- SYP made 17 convictions for Child Sexual Exploitation during the 
year and 327 referrals were made to post abuse support services 

- Early Years Found Stage, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4 (progress 8) 
were all above national average 

 
 

Page 26



IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

What are we worried about 
- Only 6.5% of Early Help assessments were completed by partners (75 

out of 1,150) 
- 39.4% of Early Help Assessments completed in 35 working days 
- 29% of the targeted range of families for change achieved the 

Payment By Result outcome 
- Section 47 rates are significantly higher that statistical neighbours 

despite an in year reduction - 251.8/10k pop 
- There had been increase of those children on a Child Protection Plan 

(CPP) who haD been made subject to a plan for a second or 
subsequent time (4.7% to 8.4%) 

- A reduction on the number of children on a CPP who had had a visit 
from 99% to 88.4% during the year 

- A reduction in the number of children who were ceasing to be Looked 
After due to permanence from 40.1% to 28.3% 

- Only 68.2% of LAC had an up-to-date Personal Education Plan (PEP) 
- A reduction in the number of children who had 3 or more placements, 

however, this continued to be high (11.3%).  There has been a 
reduction in the number of children who had had a stable placement 
for over two years (67.6%) 

 
What do we need to do next 
- Ensure that the right service at the right time was in place including 

work across CYPS and partners at all stages of the process 
particularly around thresholds 

- Quality remained a priority and this was a balance with compliance 
- Increased level of LAC - It was important to progress the 

implementation of the sufficiency strategy and other transformational 
and investment programmes 

- Continue to ensure that LAC were placed in family settings (even if 
this meant a move) 

 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 
- The reasons behind the dip in performance in the Families for Change 

programme and what were the achievements of the programme had 
been so far.  

- Levels of engagement with schools, particularly in relation to reducing 
poor attendance. 

- Clarification as to why there were higher than average Section 47 
referrals in Rotherham? 

- Concerns about re-referrals and quality of decision making and 
practice in relation to ‘stepping down’ intervention. 

- Improvements in quality of practice as a result of the roll out of ‘Signs 
of Safety’ 

- The implementation of the Liquid Logic case management system and 
confidence in accuracy of data. 

- Checks and balances in place to ensure that health and dental checks 
for Looked After children took place on a timely basis. 

- Engagement with the Early Help offer in relation to Children’s Centres. 

Page 27



 IMPROVING LIVES SELECT COMMISSION - 25/07/17  

 

- Levels of referrals with domestic abuse as a presenting factor. 
- Areas of improvement from April 2017. 
 
The Chair thanked Officers for the report. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted. 
 

75. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That the next schedule meeting be held on Tuesday, 12th 
September, 2017 at 5.30 p.m. 
 

 

Page 28



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION 
19th July, 2017 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Mallinder (in the Chair); Councillors Albiston, Atkin, Buckley, 
Elliot, Jepson, Jones, McNeely, Reeder, Sheppard, Taylor, Vjestica, Walsh and 
Wyatt, Lilian Shears and Pat Cahill (Rotherfed). 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allen, B. Cutts, Price and 
Julie Turner. 
  
 
67. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

 
68. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
 There were no members of the public or press present at the meeting. 

 
69. COMMUNICATIONS  

 
 The Chair welcomed everyone and formally thanked Brian Walker, who 

had now retired, for his work on the commission as a co-optee.   
 
Pat Cahill and Lilian Shears were welcomed back for 2017-18 as the 
representatives from RotherFed and thanked for their commitment to the 
Commission. 
 
Cllr Mallinder gave a brief update covering: 
 
• Key items in the work programme for 2017-18: - culture and 

leisure, neighbourhood working, housing allocation and 
adaptations, and asset management 

• LGA training in Warwick 
• Visits to scrutiny in Lambeth and Camden 
• Monitoring the new framework for Dignity 
• Regular meetings with Cabinet, Strategic Directors and Officers 
• Two way links between Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 

and Improving Places. 
 

70. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 5TH APRIL, 2017  
 

 Arising from Minute No. 64 Engagement of Young Tenants of Council 
Housing – RotherFed Scrutiny Report, Pat Cahill confirmed that the 
review report had been accepted by the Directorate Leadership Team in 
Adult Care and Housing and feedback would be provided on the changes 
that would result from the recommendations made. 
 
 

Page 29 Agenda Item 3



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 
RotherFed’s second review considering appointments, communications 
and the customer journey for housing repairs was underway.  This would 
include a questionnaire, mystery shopping and interviews with officers 
and tenants.  The review would be completed by the year end. 
 
Resolved:- That subject to the inclusion of the attendance of Pat Cahill 
and Lilian Shears, the minutes of the previous meeting held on 5th April, 
2017, be approved as a correct record. 
 

71. REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES AND SUB-GROUPS  
 

 Councillor Sheppard would keep a watching brief on developments with 
regard to District Heating through liaison with the Cabinet Member for 
Housing and the three Swinton Ward Councillors. 
 
Resolved:- That a full list of representatives on outside bodies and sub-
groups be circulated to Members. 
 

72. EMERGENCY PLANNING - TASK AND FINISH GROUP UPDATE  
 

 Councillor Wyatt highlighted how recent events nationally showed the 
importance of emergency planning and the role of local authorities in 
catastrophes.  The Emergency Plan had been activated in Swinton 
recently following a major fire, which had provided a good insight of how 
things operate locally. 
 
It was confirmed that the review work had concluded and the draft review 
report had been circulated for feedback.  This would be signed off at a 
final meeting of the task and finish group with a view to it being presented 
to the Commission at the September meeting.  
 
The Emergency Plan was included on both the Corporate and the 
Regeneration and Environment risk registers as no full exercise had been 
undertaken yet, only desk top work.  There were issues to clarify 
regarding staffing for the Operations Room and other functions but a good 
team of Forward Liaison Officers was in place. 
 

73. FIRE SAFETY ON RMBC HIGH RISE PROPERTIES  
 

 Mark Nearey, Contract and Service Development Manager, and Phil 
Duffy, Technical Officer, Adult Care and Housing presented an overview 
of actions taken in managing fire risk at Beeversleigh and other Council 
Housing stock. 
 
Beeversleigh 
• Beeversleigh was the only high rise block managed and owned by 

the Council 
• 12 storeys, 48 flats, both 1 and 2 bedrooms 
• 2 passenger lifts and 1 concrete staircase. 
• Recent investment £1.7m  

Page 30



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

• Upgraded fire detection and installed a new sprinkler system  
• No external cladding  
• Current and up-to-date Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) 
• X2 visits/inspections from South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 

Service (SYFRS) 
 
Current provision of fire detection and safety 
• x1 heat detector/sprinkler in every habitable room  
• x1 smoke detector in the hallway, bedroom and lounge in every flat 
• x1 strobe light in master bedroom  
• x1 Hush button in hallway of each flat  
• Heat detectors/smoke alarms automatically linked to Rothercare  
• Fire call points in communal areas  
• Weekly tests on communal fire alarms and regular cleaning of 

communal area  
 
Other group dwellings 
• x4 Council group dwellings - low rise two or three storey 
• Shaftsbury House, Wellfield Lodge, Dawsons Croft, Hampstead 

Green 
• Re-inspected with existing FRA and updated 
• Annual inspection programme, monitored via the Chief Executive’s 

Office 
• Works identified to commence immediately, expected delivery 8 to 

12 weeks 
• Any urgent repairs have been resolved 
• Further inspections and assessments taking place with SYFRS 
• Rolling programme of FRA inspections 
 
External wall insulation (EWI) 
• 1,000 houses benefited from External Wall Insulation. 
• EWI was in isolation is a combustible material 
• BUT when installed in conjunction with the external render coating 

and the existing wall structure i.e. brick/concrete, it provided a fire 
barrier  

• Class 0 rating - protects the surfaces from the spread of flames 
AND limits the amount of heat released from the surface during a 
fire 

• Requested Fire Service to inspect products and installation 
methods – 1 storey buildings 

• Building Control had signed off a statement elevating safety 
concerns re-EWI 

 
Budget 
Housing Revenue Account budget in place to carry out current FRA works 
 
Further actions 
• Review sterile communal area policy  
• Suited key system to all RMBC service doors and risers 
• Evacuation/Stay Put policy to be reviewed 

Page 31



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 
• Fire Safely training for staff to be refreshed 
• Review location/information of residents with mobility issues  
• Establish a Compliance Working group - issues such as asbestos, 

fire, gas and electrical safety, legionnaires. 
• Review information given to tenants at sign up with regard to Fire 

Safety 
• Review previous fires - lessons learned 
• Build on excellent working relations with SYFRS  
• Greater awareness amongst its residents regarding Fire Safety  
• Continue to ensure every Council home had appropriate smoke 

detection  
• Ensure gas safety compliance remains at 100% 
 
Discussion followed the presentation with the following issues 
raised/highlighted:- 
 

• Members confirmed that residents at Beeversleigh were more than 
happy with how the Council had responded swiftly to concerns 
following the fire at Grenfell Tower, with visits from officers and 
assurance given. 
 

• The need for a common sense and balanced approach regarding 
tenants’ belongings in communal areas.  Officers would attend a 
future surgery to provide clarity for residents. 
 

• Concerns regarding mobility scooters left in the wide corridors at 
Shaftesbury House rather than being taken inside people’s home, 
thus posing a fire risk – This was recognised as a growing issue 
necessitating further work and consultation, but it was a fire risk. 
 

• Fire appliance access at the rear of Beeversleigh due to metal 
fencing – It was hoped to have more double yellow lines to restrict 
parked vehicles although SYFRS had not raised the fencing as an 
issue during their visit.  There was no access issue regarding the 
normal fire tender, but rather with the extending ladder, so 
additional hatching would be put in place with a trial run by SYFRS. 
 
Following the review of the stay put policy at Beeversleigh how any 
messages would be given to residents – The FRA had confirmed it 
would be a Stay Put policy and letters would go to all residents. 
 

• Awareness of their evacuation policy for residents living in the other 
blocks – This was also a Stay Put policy and this would need to be 
re-communicated to residents once the FRAs had been completed.  
Signage was in place saying leave if there was a fire in your flat or 
in the communal area. 
 
 
 

Page 32



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

• Insulation on blocks of maisonettes – The insulation used was fire 
resistant.  No checks had been carried out on these yet as the 
higher risk properties were being considered first but officers were 
confident that those buildings were safe in terms of fire resistance. 
 

• Hush buttons allowed people two minutes to turn the alarm off if it 
had been triggered accidentally, for example by burnt toast, before 
it went through to Rothercare. 
 

• Option to turn off strobe lighting for example for people with 
epilepsy – Officers confirmed that it was red rather than white 
lighting but they would double check if it could be deactivated for 
residents who did not have a hearing impairment. 
 

• Gas installations in stairwells – At Beeversleigh the gas main was 
slightly away from the building with an external pipe to the sole gas 
boiler located on the roof and no gas boilers in the individual flats.  
There was also an isolation point and in the case of excessive heat 
in that room the gas was automatically shut off.  The boiler was 
regularly serviced and maintained and SYFRS knew the location of 
the isolation point.   
 

• Reporting safety concerns – This could be done 24:7 via the 
repairs line.  
 

• The availability of £1m through the Fire Authority last year in match 
funding for social housing providers to fit sprinkler systems.  In 
addition to the safety benefits it also meant re-build costs were 
significantly lower in the case of a fire if a building did have a 
sprinkler system.  Plus it was easier to evacuate an individual flat 
rather than a whole building. 
 

• If any FRAs identified the need for a sprinkler system they would 
be fitted. 
 

• Fire safety in non-Council buildings where services such as 
supported housing were delivered or residential care homes – A 
joint document had been drafted between Housing and Facilities 
Management on actions to be carried out.  The Senior Leadership 
Team received weekly updates on progress.  More information 
could be provided for Members on non-housing related work. 
 

• SYFRS awareness of location of dry risers, ensuring clear access 
to them and maintenance of the couplings – This featured in the 
walk round Beeversleigh with SYFRS checking every cupboard, 
with the Council having responsibility for maintenance and clear 
access. 
 
 

Page 33



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 

• Fire Services were well versed in dealing with difficulties at sites 
and had protocols and procedures in place to deal with problems. 
 

• Customised alarms for people with particular needs based on 
sensory deprivation – The adaptations team would assess the 
needs of an individual before they were housed/rehoused and 
provide any specialist equipment. 
 

• For properties above shops, FRAs were being undertaken with 
appropriate action if fire hazards were identified. 
 

• Electrical wiring at Beeversleigh and any control over or safety 
tests on white goods purchased by residents – It was difficult to vet 
residents’ purchases but there would be further discussion.  A fixed 
wire test programme was undertaken every five years.  In furnished 
homes PAT testing took place annually. 
 

• Underground car parking in terms of fire safety – Hazards would be 
picked up and removed in the weekly visits to Beeversleigh.  Other 
officers working in or visiting buildings were expected to report 
back any concerns. 
 

• Inspections to wall insulation to ensure its integrity was maintained 
and advice to tenants on making holes in insulation and danger 
from sparks – The next tenant newsletter would feature this and 
officers would be briefed and asked to report any instances of 
exposure and potential risk.  Tenants should also write in to 
request permission for any changes to the building. 
 

• Pleased with structural improvements made to fire safety but also 
reviews of past fires were important particularly given that 
vulnerable people were involved in many instances of fires and this 
should be included within the fire strategy – The Compliance 
Working Group would reinforce the message that this was about 
people not just properties. 
 

• Wedging open fire doors and whether SYFRS could provide 
signage asking people to refrain from doing this so it was a clear 
SYFRS request rather than one from RMBC. 
 

• Wider public communication on fire safety, not only with Council 
tenants. 

 
Officers were thanked for their presentation. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

74. TOWN CENTRE MASTERPLAN  
 

 Simeon Leach, Economic Strategy and Partnerships Manager, 
Regeneration and Environment Services gave a detailed powerpoint 
presentation on the Rotherham Town Centre Masterplan.  Earlier work 
under the Renaissance Programme was referenced to set the context.   
 
Last year the Supplementary Planning Document identified potential sites 
and the draft Town Centre Masterplan would go to Cabinet in September. 
 
Masterplan approach 
• Implementation focused 
• Specific deliverable projects 
• Ambitious… but realistic  
• Commercially pragmatic… but bold 
 
Shaping strategy 
• Confidence in the town centre environment 
• The arrival-to-departure experience 
• More to do and see in a quality setting 
• The ‘WOW - that really makes a difference’ moment 
• More PEOPLE 
• Capture latent SPENDING power 
• A place for distinctive independent retail 
• Retail is not the ‘answer’ – but must be nurtured 
• Quality eating and drinking a key opportunity 
• New commercial leisure development (Cinema & Hotel) 
• More living in and around the Town Centre 
 
Forge island scheme content 
• 25,000 sq. ft food & beverage 
• 60-80 bed quality hotel 
• 4/5 screen cinema 
• 300+ multi-storey car park 
• Retail opportunity 
• 120 apartments 
• New landmark bridge 
• New riverside park 
• Vital link with Minster Gardens 
• Hydro-energy on weir 
• Potential New Theatre 
 
Riverside residential 
• Key ownerships 
• Council land as ‘market creator’ 
• Starter Homes - go early sites 
• Critical mass of new residents 
• 300 new homes 
• Mix of dwelling types 
• Private houses 

Page 35



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 
• Distinct market offer 
• Design quality/price-point 
• Riverside setting 
• Potential bridge over river 
 
Bus Interchange and multi-storey car park 
• Funding secured by SYPTE 
• Refurbishment of Bus Station and Car Park 
• Separate management of car park 
• Ease of arrival and departure 
• College Walk to be maintained 
 
Learning Campus and Doncaster Gate Higher Education Hub 
• Existing Rotherham College anchor 
• New Higher education facility at     
• Doncaster gate site opposite 
• Develop learning quarter 
• Maximise benefit of students in town 
 
Implementation Plan 
 
Accelerate Forge Island Opportunity - Top Priority & catalyst project  
 
1. Core Peninsula Site/Riverside Precinct (the core development 
opportunity site) 
The critical next step was for RMBC to appoint a development/delivery 
partner. 
 
2. Former Magistrates Court 
The Council to undertake feasibility/business case/funding work with 
regard to Theatre and Arts Centre. 
 
3. The Eastern Riverbank Regeneration 
 The Council to work with existing landowners 
 
Residential Development Partner … and Early Delivery of Residential 
Riverside 
 
• A further (different) partner for residential opportunities 
• Includes as a priority former swimming baths site at Riverside site 

(market creating site) 
• Other Starter Homes Sites 
• Other Land RMBC can bring into Partnership e.g. Corporation 

Street CPO land 
• RMBC to assemble sites to feed-in e.g. Royal Mail depot 
 
Implementation Programme focusing on public sector-led projects and site 
assembly 
 
 

Page 36



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

• This relates to the ‘conventional regeneration activity’ falling to the 
Council to drive and co-ordinate 

• The markets refurbishment… Linked with the Third Sector Hub 
development 

• Land assembly projects including the relocation of Royal Mail 
Depot 

• Public realm/landscape projects across the town centre 
• Public art/Lighting 
• Parking proposals 
• Other regeneration activity e.g. the on-street train-bus Clifton Park-

Town Centre 
 
Planning and Regeneration support to private development projects 
- Council promotion, support and quality review of private sector 
development proposals.  
 
• Doncaster Gate 
• Interchange Area 
• Guest & Chrimes 
• Main Street 
 
Capacity and skills 
- Council promotion, support and quality review of private sector 
development proposals.  
 
• RMBC need to bring together a dedicated team of skilled and 

experienced individuals to deliver the town centre development 
programme.  

• Without a strengthening of the team at RMBC, the challenging 
delivery timeline would not be met and the town centre would 
continue to struggle.  

• External support is likely to be required for certain activity. 
• The positive approach to planning delivery in Rotherham was also 

helpful demonstrating a can-do attitude.  
 
In summary …. 

• A clear plan of what needs to be done 
• Implementation has started 
• Key ‘sites’ have defined roles 
• Aligning public / private investment 
• A challenging delivery programme 
• But vital to the future of the town centre 

 
Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/highlighted:- 
 

• Changing people’s habits with regard to visiting and using 
Rotherham town centre when they were accustomed to doing 
things elsewhere – If we provide opportunities for people they will 
come and the quality offer that we do have already is used.  One 

Page 37



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 
example will be cinemas as these are popular with young people.  
People want to come to the town centre but we need to give them 
the hook. 

 

• Parking at Doncaster Gate – The health centre would retain its set 
number of places and there would also be some parking for the 
campus. 

 

• Attracting more affluent people to live in Rotherham and 
encouraging people to buy the new homes, particularly in terms of 
noise and insulation – Plans were for a mix of housing, not only 
apartments, including town houses to attract families.  Starter 
homes help people get on the housing ladder and were for under 
40s, who would get them at a reduced rate and have to keep them 
for five years.  It was hoped to attract more affluent people and the 
tram-train would be another benefit as property prices were lower 
in Rotherham than Sheffield.   

 

• Attracting people in to use the services was important but services 
also need to be there to attract them.  

 

• There were three phases to the plan, so what would happen if 
things went wrong part way through? –The offer was not yet as 
good as it should be and there was probably a two to three year 
gap to bridge, keeping things going in the meantime.  In a time of 
hard retail trading conditions it was about improving the town 
centre offer before we have the “big ticket” items such as the 
cinema and discussions were taking place with retailers.  There 
were some negative perceptions on street promotions and this 
would be looked at as well as possibly holding more events. No 
clear set phases were defined bar Forge Island definitely being the 
first and key stage which would happen and should help to draw 
people in, with the other phases following on the back of that.  
More work would follow on the markets, which were already 
successful, to keep them growing.  Housing was under way and 
would be supported where possible. 

 

• Mixture of properties was positive and it was good to attract 
families but with the higher education campus had there also been 
consideration given to attracting students, which would help with 
the economy? Also older people as studies showed the most 
successful, vibrant and healthy areas to live in were those mixed 
across all society – It was about attracting a mix of people 
including, in the longer term, attracting students to the town centre 
once the campus was up and running.  
 

• Future proofing for flood risk to property at the side of the river 
although alleviation work had been carried out and contributions 
from private sector developers – A flood risk tool kit would be used 
for sites as part of the planning process. Flood requirements for 

Page 38



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

Forge Island have been mapped out and costed. Once we go out 
to the market, developers would be aware of that and what they 
would be expected to contribute. 

 

• Focus seemed to be largely on young people; had the older 
generation been taken into account as not everyone liked shopping 
malls and shopping was a means of social interaction? Car parking 
had been raised but what about improvements to public transport 
and the bus station? – The bus station did need work which SYPTE 
would undertake with approximately £12m investment from mid-
2018. The aim was to attract all age groups to the town centre but 
young people in particular did seem to be a gap. It was important to 
improve public transport links and accessibility but also to have the 
offer there for people who travelled privately. 

 

• Rotherham was working towards being a child centred borough but 
did the plan take into account the recommendation from the 
Director of Public Health’s Annual Report about adopting the World 
Health Organisation age friendly cities and communities 
accreditation? 

 

• For the 300 homes, what would be the split in housing types and 
who was the target audience? – It was a mixed housing offer with 
affordable housing as part of the mix. 

 

• The demolition programme was under way but there would be a lot 
of empty unattractive sites around the town centre, so it was 
important to try and achieve some quick wins. – As soon as sites 
were flat the intention was to start developing quickly. The bridge 
near the former Tesco site was frequently mentioned as a concern. 

 

• Was there a height restrictions on town centre buildings – Yes 
particularly around Forge Island so as not to obscure the view to 
the Minster.  There was dialogue with Historic England. 

 

• The river was a key asset with great potential to develop around it 
– It was important that new buildings faced the river and had nice 
views. 

 

• Competition with other towns and markets, including on parking 
charges. 

 

• Slides from a seminar on SYPTE last week could be circulated to 
all IPSC members which included plans for the bus station that had 
had significant input from Rotherham Youth Cabinet to address 
young people’s concerns.   

 

• Ensuring that the offer did meet the needs of the community, that it 
was vibrant and connected to arts and to other communities. 

 

Page 39



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 

• The importance of a cinema in Rotherham to young people. 
 
Several points raised required further information from Housing and would 
be followed up by officers to ensure a full response for the Commission. 
 
The Chair mentioned having an away day or half day and invited 
Members to submit their questions so that the right officers could attend. 
 
The officer was thanked for the presentation. 
 

75. CULTURAL STRATEGY  
 

 Councillor Yasseen, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Working and 
Cultural Services introduced the ambition for the Cultural Strategy. 
Looking back over the last ten years the cultural agenda in the broader 
sense had diminished and it was important to embed this agenda across 
the Council in a more integrated and cross cutting approach because of 
the value and potential it brought. The Borough had some amazing things 
that needed to be well publicised to encourage people to access them 
and to build people’s pride in Rotherham. 
 
Polly Hamilton, Assistant Director Culture, Sport and Tourism, delivered a 
powerpoint presentation outlining the process for developing a Cultural 
Strategy.  This supported the report included in the agenda pack. 
 
Purpose of the strategy 
• Shape Rotherham’s vision for culture, leisure and green spaces, 

strengthening the distinctive identity of the Borough. 
• Develop shared principles with which to embed quality, excellence 

and innovation. 
• Build consensus about priorities for development/investment. 
• Develop joint plans for cross-cutting themes/priorities, such as 

health and wellbeing, place-making, child-centred borough. 
 
Strategic outcomes 

• Economic growth: supporting regeneration, better neighbourhoods 
and place-making; building talent, educational achievement and 
skills; growing creative, leisure industries and visitor economy. 

• Social outcomes: strengthening community cohesion, building 
empathy, reducing isolation, improving quality of life; enabling 
personal growth.  

• Enhancing health and wellbeing: encouraging physical activity, 
strengthening emotional resilience and positive mental health. 

• Transforming perceptions: restoring civic pride and rebuilding 
Rotherham’s reputation. 

• Financial resilience: delivering savings, increasing income from 
non-Council sources; reducing demands on the public sector. 

 
 
 

Page 40



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

Strategic context 
 
National 
Department for Culture, Media & Sport 
• The Culture White Paper 2016  
Arts Council of England 
• Great Art and Culture for Everyone 
Sport England 

• Towards an Active Nation 
Creative Industries Federation 
• Industrial Strategy – a Blueprint for Growth 
 
Regional 
• Sheffield City Region 
• Northern/People’s Powerhouse 
 
Local 
• Rotherham Together Plan 
• Economic Growth Plan 
• Local Development Plan 
• Children & Young People’s Plan 
• Safer Rotherham Partnership Plan 
• Rotherham Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 
Local 
Views of Rotherham 2015 
• 82% say well-looked after parks & public spaces is a priority 
• 75% feel that having local places to go such as museums & parks 

is important 
• 72% valued a good range of things to do for teenagers 
• 67% thought a bigger range of low-cost leisure activities is 

important 
• 82% want local businesses to grow and create more jobs 
• 91% keen to make sure that older people stay independent 
 
“Another likeable aspect of Rotherham is its parks (Clifton Park in 
particular) and other green open spaces which were mentioned at most 
roadshows, often with local references. Rural open countryside and 
country parks were also liked by older people, children, community groups 
and business leaders, with Wentworth village being mentioned several 
times as an area of particular local beauty.” 
 
I like…”Rotherham’s green spaces, the wildflower verges, country parks, 
tree 
lined streets; and Clifton Park is beautiful” …“hidden amazing things like 
Wentworth Woodhouse”.  
 
“There were a range of views about Rotherham town centre; positive 
views were directed at the Minster, Minster Gardens and neighbouring 
areas of the High Street. Those liking the positive aspects of the town 

Page 41



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 
centre were young people, council and college staff, and business 
leaders. Rotherham’s history and heritage were mentioned several times, 
referencing Wentworth Woodhouse and other historic buildings. 
Rotherham United and New York Stadium were mentioned positively at 
most roadshows.” 
 
“We need to get back some pride in the town - to hear Rotherham 
mentioned on national media for good reasons, not bad.” 
 
Scope 
• Includes the arts, libraries, events, attractions, play, sport, leisure, 

parks, green spaces, archives, museums, heritage sites, film and 
digital media.   

 
Images of people taking part in a range of activities 
 
Strategy development process 
• Recruitment to Cultural Partnership Board 
• Commissioned Support on consultation, research, evaluation 

framework, drafting strategy document, etc. 
• Select Commission Review 
• Officer Working Group 
 
RMBC Input 

• Member seminar programme 
• Officer working group 
• Administrative support to Cultural Partnership Board 
 

How you can help 
• Challenge - be a critical friend – provide challenge and support 
• Champion - Be an advocate within other forums – ask where 

culture, sport & tourism can contribute? 
• Connect - Make links between the Cultural Strategy and 

plans/activities. 
• Seminars 
• Suggest members of the Cultural Partnership Board 
 
Next steps 
• Business Growth Board 21st July 2017 
• Cultural Partnership Board in place by September 
• Working Groups established Sept/October 
• Consultants appointed by October 2017 
• Sub-regional conference January 2018 
• Draft Plan by January 2018, Final Plan published April 2018 
 
Discussion on the report and the presentation covered the following 
issues:- 

 

Page 42



 IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION- 19/07/17  

 

 

• Local authorities involved in the Sheffield City Region – 
Confirmation to follow. 
 

• Terms of reference for Cultural Board membership seemed 
demanding and people would not always be able to commit for long 
terms – The current version was a draft for discussion based on 
other partnerships in the Borough and on cultural partnerships 
elsewhere.  The intention was that people could stay on the Board 
even if their job role changed as they would not necessarily be 
there to represent an organisation but rather in relation to the 
strategic needs of the Borough in terms of culture and bringing a 
certain area of expertise and a network of contacts. 
 

• Support for the refreshed Strategy as it was important for 
accessing external funding and also the importance of third sector 
involvement. 
 

• Several Members highlighted important cultural assets in their own 
Wards and popular annual events and festivals across the Borough 
which raised the profile of Rotherham and attracted people who 
then spent money.  
 

• Two areas to improve upon were communication, especially 
marketing/promotion, and making better use of existing assets.  
This would extend to working more in partnership with local 
businesses who benefit from increased footfall and with the press. 
 

• Better promotion of Wentworth Woodhouse. – Funding through the 
Great Places Scheme for Rotherham and Barnsley Councils for 
Wentworth Woodhouse and Elsecar would contribute to this 
including through a destination management plan and opportunities 
to increase visitors. It had great potential but was also a challenge. 
A new chief executive has been appointed who could come and 
discuss future plans. 
 

• The information in the report needed to be clearer and fleshed out 
before going out to the public.  
 

• No mention of the Local Development Plan, much of which had 
been approved by the Planning Inspectorate, in the background 
papers – It should have been referenced but this stage was the 
process for developing the Strategy rather than the strategy itself. 
The Strategy would make those references and connections. 

 

• Maintenance of some assets was a concern – Again this related to 
links with the voluntary and community sector as the Council would 
not be able to do everything on its own.  So the challenge would be 
to develop the partnerships to draw in external funding and to have 

Page 43



IMPROVING PLACES SELECT COMMISSION - 19/07/17  

 

 
a revenue plan that ensured sustainability. 

 

• Importance of a Strategy covering the entire Borough and all the 
residents, not just Rotherham town centre, and that it linked in with 
the vast array of activities in place. 

 

• Scrutiny involvement at an early stage in the process was 
welcomed but further discussion was needed to clarify the 
approach. 

 
The Officer was thanked for the report and presentation. 
 
Resolved:- 
 
(1) That the Commission supported the commissioning of a Cultural 
Strategy for Rotherham. 
 
(2) That the Commission supported the establishment of a new 
external partnership to oversee the development of the strategy. 
 
(3)  That the Chair discuss future Scrutiny involvement with the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board. 
 

76. DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 

 Wednesday 20th September, 2017 at 1.30p.m. 
 

 

Page 44



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 05/07/17  

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
5th July, 2017 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Steele (in the Chair); Councillors Brookes, Clark, Cusworth, 
Evans, Mallinder, Napper, Sheppard, Short, Walsh and Wyatt. 
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Cowles.  
 
13. TO CONSIDER WHETHER THE PRESS AND PUBLIC SHOULD BE 

EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING DURING CONSIDERATION OF ANY 
PART OF THE AGENDA.  
 

 The Chair reported that there were no items on the agenda that would 
require the press or public to be excluded from the meeting.  
 

14. TO DETERMINE ANY ITEM WHICH THE CHAIRMAN IS OF THE 
OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY.  
 

 The Chair reported that there were no urgent items that required the 
Board’s consideration at the meeting.  
 

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 Councillor Evans declared that he had a disclosable pecuniary interest in 
item 20 (Outcome of the Consultation and Recommendations on the 
Learning Disability Offer and the future of In-house Services for Adults 
with a Learning Disability and/or Autism) as his partner was employed in a 
care home that would be affected by the proposals.  
 
Councillor Wyatt declared that he had a personal interest in Minute No. 20 
(Outcome of the Consultation and Recommendations on the Learning 
Disability Offer and the future of In-house Services for Adults with a 
Learning Disability and/or Autism) as his daughter was employed in a 
care home that would be affected by the proposals.  
 

16. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

 There were no questions from the press or public.  
 

17. 2016/17 BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT  
 

 Consideration was given to a report which outlined the pre-audit revenue, 
Capital and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) outturn positions for the 
2016-17 financial year.  
 
The report detailed the provisions of the original revenue budget and the 
additional budget allocation agreed by Council in December 2016 to 
address pressures within Children’s Social Care Services. It was reported 
that a outturn underspend of £765k against the revenue budget and a 

Page 45 Agenda Item 4



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 05/07/17 

total of £1.968m of qualifying expenditure was capitalised, which resulted 
in a final charge against the revenue budget of £205,244m, which was 
£2.733m less than the revised budget.  
 
It was reported that the outturn position should be viewed in the context of 
significant increasing cost and demand for Children’s Social Care 
Services, the increase in demand for Adult Care Services and the delays 
in implementing some aspects of the Adult Care Development 
Programme. Members noted that delivering the overall position 
necessitated the implementation of a moratorium on all but essential 
spend through stringent procurement controls and recruitment controls 
(via the newly established Workforce Management Board) and the 
concerted efforts of both Elected Members and senior officers in 
managing the reducing levels of funding at a time of increasing service 
need, and also the generally good and responsible financial management 
on the part of budget managers and budget holders. 
 
It was noted that the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) underspent by 
£7.224m in 2016/17, the outturn for schools (including Declared Savings) 
was a combined balance of £1.304m, which will be carried forward into 
2017/18 in accordance with Department for Education regulations.  
 
It was further reported that the Capital Programme outturn showed an 
underspend of £9.850m against the estimated spend in 2016/17. That 
was due to the re-profiling of expenditure on a number of schemes.  
 
Members sought clarification in respect the level of reserves for the 
Authority and requested reassurance that this was legally compliant. It 
was confirmed that the Authority did have sufficient reserves and was 
legally compliant. Furthermore, a review of reserves would be undertaken 
during the summer of 2017 as part of the budget planning process and 
the Medium Term Review. 
 
Reference was made to the section of the report concerning the district 
heating scheme and the problems identifying suitable sites. It was noted 
that the gross capital budget for District Heating in 2016/17 was £1m and 
the £409k underspend was due to a number of technical challenges 
around the implementation of some schemes, causing a delay for a 
number of months. It was confirmed that, once resolved, the delay would 
have meant the work being carried out in the winter months and tenants 
affected would have been without heating for short periods of time. 
Consequently a decision was taken to defer those schemes until the 
2017/18 financial year, so works could be carried out in the summer 
months.  
 
Members queried the impact of the change in funding from continuing 
healthcare contributions for Looked After Children to understand the level 
of impact and the work being done to mitigate the impact. It was 
confirmed that work was being undertaken to understand the requirement 
of the current year’s cohort of children. This information would then be 

Page 46



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 05/07/17  

 

used to inform a discussion with the Clinical Commissioning Group 
regarding a formal arrangement for pooling finances and to provide 
support for children through one fund. It was anticipated that this would be 
brought forward in the current financial year. 
 
Reference was made to the rise in the uptake of direct payments in 
respect of Older People’s Services in Adult Social Care and assurances 
were sought in respect of the actions being taken to address the increase. 
Members also queried what plans were being put in place for when the 
monies from the Better Care Fund ceased. It was explained that the 
Health and Wellbeing Board had met earlier that day and intended to 
invest a significant amount of funding to bolster Adult Care. Part of the 
funding would be used to support placement costs and elements of direct 
payments. It was noted that were not large numbers of new customers 
coming through to access direct payments.  
 
Members noted a number of underspends across the Authority arising 
from a high level of staff turnover and queried whether that pointed to 
issues attributable to fewer staff being employed and if assurance could 
be given to confirm that there were adequate levels of staff in those 
service areas. In response, it was confirmed that recruitment to vacant 
posts in Adult Safeguarding would commence in the coming weeks. It was 
confirmed that the service was operating at a safe level at present, but full 
capacity would be required in that area.  
 
Reference was made to additional staffing costs in Children and Young 
People’s Services and whether any of the new posts that were 
established following investment in the directorate had been filled. It was 
confirmed that 22 posts had been filled in the previous round of 
recruitment and the recruitment process was underway to recruit a further 
22 social workers for next year.  
 
Members queried the carry forward requests for budgets and specifically 
sought information in respect of Droppingwell Landfill. Following the 
meeting it was confirmed that the £66k carry forward into 2017/18 was 
made up of two elements. £45k had been set aside in respect of the 
diminution in value of the land at Car Hill Landfill site. This was the loss in 
value of the land leased from Fitzwilliam Estates, following the landfilling 
and restoration of the site.  The agreed diminution value of £45k would 
discharge the issue. However, the timing of the spend would be 
dependent upon the progress of the Bassingthorpe Farm development. 
The remaining capital spend was for improvements to the landfill 
infrastructure. Significant damage to the Droppingwell site delayed 
progress relating to key elements of the spend. The damage included 
extensive damage to a borehole, that had been significantly dislodged by 
mechanical means; this borehole had to be re-instated before gas flare 
works could commence. The gas flare works were underway.  The 
remainder of the capital spend would be spent during the current financial 
year. 
 

Page 47



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 05/07/17 

Finally, Members sought to understand the impact of various overspends 
and underspends across services at the Council. In response, it was 
explained that it meant that funds were not spent on priorities and 
services in accordance with the budget set by the Council, with neither 
overspends or underspends being good financial practice. The impact of 
underspending was considered to be different across services, although it 
was expected that the main cause of underspends would be related to 
staffing.  
 
Resolved:- 
 
1. That Cabinet be advised that the recommendations be supported. 
 
2. That Cabinet be provided further detail on the issues in identifying 
suitable sites and necessary delays to the District Housing 
Schemes over the winter months leading to budget not being fully 
utilised. 
 

3. That Cabinet be provided with further detail on the issues relating 
to the delays to works at the Dropping Well landfill site.  

 
18. MAY 2017/18 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT  

 
 Consideration was given to a report which detailed the financial position 

for the Revenue Budget at the end of May 2017 and was based on actual 
costs and income for the first two months of 2017/18 and forecast for the 
remainder of the financial year.  
 
It was reported that, as at May 2017, the Council had a forecast 
overspend on General Fund of £6.9m. The majority of the £24m budget 
savings approved within the 2017/18 were being achieved, with £11.9m of 
those savings were directorate budget savings. However, it was reported 
that, in addition to those budget savings, directorates also had to achieve 
£5.4m of budget savings in 2017/18 which were agreed in previous 
budgets. Total directorate savings for 2017/18 therefore were £17.3m. 
The current position indicated that around £5.3m of those total savings 
were at risk of not being achieved in the current financial year (and were 
reflected in the current overspend projection).  
 
It was further reported that work would continue to identify alternative or 
additional savings in order to maintain a balanced budget position. 
Management actions would also continue to address areas of overspend. 
The overall budget position would continue to be monitored closely with 
regular updates on progress in maintaining a balanced budget position 
reported regularly through financial monitoring reports.  
 
The forecast overspend should be set against a backdrop of the Council 
having successfully addressed cost pressures of £138m over the last six 
financial years and having to save a further £24m in the current year and 
to deliver an additional £42m in efficiencies and savings in the following 

Page 48



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 05/07/17  

 

two financial years in order to balance the Council’s General Fund 
Revenue Budget by 2019/20.  
 
It was noted that a significant in-year pressure of £4.880m on the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) High Needs Block continued to be an 
issue. A recovery strategy set in place last year would, however, resolve 
£3m of the deficit and mitigate the in-year pressure through a series of 
measures including: a revised Special School funding model; a review of 
high cost out of authority education provision with a view to reducing cost 
and moving children back into Rotherham provision where possible; and a 
review of inclusion services provided by the Council. Whilst the pressure 
would not directly affect the Council’s financial position, it was considered 
imperative that the recovery strategy was implemented in order to address 
the position and avoid any risk to the Council in the future.  
 
It was noted that control over spending was critical to maintaining a robust 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and avoiding unplanned spending 
impact on the Council’s reserves. All services would continue to develop 
mitigating actions and alternative savings to compensate for financial 
pressures and delays in delivering the full amount of savings.  
 
Having regard to the projected overspend for the current financial year, 
Members queried the reserves position. In response, it was explained that 
the whole amount of reserves was set out in the Outturn Report for 2016-
17, which was elsewhere on the agenda. If the projected overspend for 
2017-18 was realised then this would have to be met from reserves, 
however, it was hoped that the projected overspend would reduce and be 
addressed by the end of the financial year.  
 
Members referred to the Dedicated Schools Grant and specifically queried 
the High Needs Block. In response, it was explained that the High Needs 
Block was funding provided to the Council from the Dedicated Schools 
Grant and was used for children with special educational needs and 
disabilities. It was  further confirmed that the funding followed the pupil 
and was not allocated specifically to individual schools. It was noted that 
the number of children needing to access support from the High Needs 
Block had not been anticipated and this had had an impact on this aspect 
of the budget. It was further explained that the Dedicated Schools Grant 
was carried forward year-on-year and the Council was always able to 
manage. Whilst there was an ongoing pressure, work was underway on a 
longer term plan to bring down the overall cost on the Dedicated Schools 
Grant and work would continue with schools and the Schools Forum to 
bring the budget into a manageable position.  
 
Concerns were expressed over spending in the Children and Young 
People’s Services directorate and it was noted that Improving Lives Select 
Commission would monitor the position closely at its October meeting. 
Reference was made to the Joint Fusion Centre bid to support the needs 
of Operation Stovewood. It has been explained at the Improving Places 
Select Commission meeting on 4 July 2017 that there was no contingency 

Page 49



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 05/07/17 

in place and Members queried whether the plan was to overspend. In 
response, it was confirmed that the plan was not overspend and that was 
never a contingency. Work was ongoing to identify the cost of historic 
abuse allegations, but there would continue to be an impact when new 
referrals were made. 
 
Members queried what plans were in place for the additional £6.2m of 
funding for Adult Social Care that had been announced in the previous 
week. In response, it was noted that the criteria for the use of the funding 
had only been published on 27 June and whilst the Health and Wellbeing 
Board had outlined the key priorities, a detailed plan was not yet in place.  
 
Reference was made to the challenges arising from hospital discharges 
and Members sought to understand the work being done to work with 
partners to ease the position. In response, it was confirmed that an 
agreement was in place with Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust and 
Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group to undertake a joint review of 
discharge pathways and this had generated a number of actions. It 
confirmed that there was a good process, but it could be further improved 
and was in the interest of all partners to deliver improvements.  
 
Having sought assurances in respect of the control of spend across the 
Authority, Members were advised that stringent controls remained in 
place. However, with the biggest pressures arising from Social Care 
Services, it was not possible to refuse to fund service where individuals 
may be at risk. 
 
Resolved:- 
 
1. That Cabinet be advised that the recommendations be supported. 
 
2. That bi-monthly budget monitoring reports for Adult Care & Housing 
and Children & Young People’s Services be submitted to Overview 
and Scrutiny Management Board for review, commencing with Adult 
Care & Housing in September 2017.  

 
3. That a report from the Strategic Director of Children & Young People’s 
Services on Higher Block Funding be submitted to Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board in December 2017.  

 
19. SITE CLUSTER II  

 
 Consideration was given to a report which summarised the extensive 

works that have been completed as part of the pre-development phase 
and sought Cabinet’s approval for the development agreement, 
development programme, and the proposed financial arrangements.  
 
It was reported that the approval of the proposal will allow the Council to 
proceed with the construction stage, which would deliver new homes 
across the seven sites in Maltby, Canklow, East Herringthorpe and 

Page 50



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 05/07/17  

 

Dinnington. Work was planned to start on the site start from autumn 2017 
with completion of the first phase in summer 2018. 
 
It was noted that the Cluster approach supported the priorities set out in 
the Council’s Corporate Plan to improve the quality and choice of housing 
and increase the number of new homes built in Rotherham. Through that 
approach, the receipts from the sales of the market sale properties would 
be used alongside the Housing Revenue Account resources to build the 
Council homes, which supported the Council’s corporate priority to build 
more social rented homes and was in line with the Council’s Housing 
Strategy. 
 
Members were in broad agreement that the proposals in the report were 
very positive and welcomed the approach outlined. It was noted that the 
Council would effectively operate as a developer, but had been prudent in 
respect of the financial modelling of the scheme.  
 
Resolved:- 
 
That Cabinet be advised that the recommendations be supported. 
 

20. OUTCOME OF THE CONSULTATION AND RECOMMENDATIONS ON 
THE LEARNING DISABILITY OFFER AND THE FUTURE OF IN HOUSE 
SERVICES FOR ADULTS WITH A LEARNING DISABILITY AND OR 
AUTISM  
 

 (Councillor Evans left the room during consideration of this item.) 
 
Consideration was given to a report which detailed the outcome of the 
review of the Learning Disability Offer and future of In-House Services for 
Adults with a Learning Disability and/or Autism, which was considered to 
be integral to the Council’s overall vision for transforming Adult Social 
Care. The outcome entailed developing a service that enabled people 
with a learning disability to: 
 

• Have the opportunity to get a job and contribute to their community 

• Have the opportunity to choose where they live; and 

• Have access to a good quality health service 

• Be kept safe and protected from all forms of exploitation 

• Access services of the highest quality which make a difference in 
assisting people to be as independent as possible 

• Offer services that are affordable, are personalised and are what 
people would want to choose  

 
It was noted that previous reports acknowledged the approach would be a 
three year improvement journey to ensure the success of the future model 
and to build on the offer for Rotherham, based on feedback received 
during the consultation period. It was envisaged that changes would 
continue until 2020. The steps that had been taken over the previous two 
years had built on the principles of the Care Act 2014 and the need to 

Page 51



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 05/07/17 

enhance the Authority’s offer to move away from an offer of traditional 
based support to a model which promoted independence for young 
people and adults. However, it was recognised that some customers with 
significant and complex needs would require support in a safe and secure 
environment but optimising their independence wherever possible. In 
order to achieve this, the Council would work closely with users, family 
carers, and key partners from the Rotherham Clinical Commissioning 
Group (RCCG), Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humberside Trust 
(RDaSH) and Health Stakeholders.  
 
It was reported that there would be a focus on timely advice and 
information, technology and the delivery of improved outcomes for people 
in more cost effective ways, with an emphasis on what people can do 
rather than what they were unable to do. In real terms, this would mean 
that people would have access to enablement services to ensure people’s 
independence would be optimised as much as possible and this would be 
to ensure their best outcomes. This would include employment 
opportunities, leisure opportunities and a real choice as to where and how 
they lived. The current building based offer of day care, respite and 
residential care tended to restrict the independence, choice and control of 
current customers and was not cost effective, although it was still 
considered that such care remained appropriate in the short to medium 
term for a small cohort of people with complex needs.  
 
In addition, it was reported that the service spent £21.5 million (2016/17) 
on Learning Disability Services for approximately 725 people. The 
proposed new service ‘offer’ would have to be supported by proactive and 
innovative commissioning.  
 
It was noted that the agreed commissioning approach would ensure that 
the market responded to the needs of individuals presently and in the 
future. That would continue to be co-produced with people with a learning 
disability to facilitate the shaping of the market and in so doing inform the 
quality of support and the management of risk. In order to support that 
process, the Council had commissioned Community Catalysts to develop 
small local and community based options that would offer individuals a 
range of activities to meet their support needs. This would also increase 
the preventative offer so those people who needed short term assistance 
could build confidence or make contacts with relevant support groups. 
There would also be a focus upon providing an enablement service which 
was not currently provided, and there was evidence and good practice 
which demonstrated the positive impact on people’s outcomes when 
reablement was used effectively. 
 
Members considered that the overriding principle in respect of the 
proposals should enable individuals to lead the best lives possible and felt 
that the Council should do the right thing. There was wide support for the 
ambition for the service to be centred on the individual, but there was 
some concern that centres would close and in-house provision would 
cease with the funding being directed to provide day care at a private 

Page 52



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 05/07/17  

 

centre. In response, the Cabinet Member confirmed that doing nothing 
was not an option, as it would not be compliant with the Care Act. The 
process of changing would be about finding new solutions, rather than 
replacing one centre with an identical one run by another body.  
 
It was recognised that the proposals would be difficult for service users 
and their relatives, but sought assurances that the service would be user 
focused, rather than building focused. Members also made reference to 
the importance of existing groups that were focused on buildings and 
these should be helped to be maintained for the future. It was further 
recognised that friendship groups had been one of the key aspects of 
feedback from the public engagement events that had taken place.  
 
The Board referred to the proposals impacting on some of the most 
vulnerable people in the Borough and the big change in service provision 
and hoped that it would be recognised that a one-size-fits-all approach 
would not work. That was noted by the Cabinet Member, who confirmed 
that the approach would have to be Care Act compliant.  
 
It was noted that the Staffing Committee had approved the establishment 
of a new post of Deputy Director of Adult Social Care, to be jointly funded 
by the Council and the Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group. In 
addition to this, work was ongoing corporately to address the budget 
challenges faced by Adult Social Care. 
 
Members sought assurances in respect of assessments for individual 
clients and who would undertake those assessments. It was confirmed 
that they would be undertaken by trained staff and management were 
currently looking at additional support to sort assessments promptly. It 
was further noted that ongoing assessment would continue to avoid a 
backlog developing.  
Resolved:- 
 
1. That Cabinet be advised that the recommendations be supported. 
 

2. That a further report be submitted to Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board on the additional costings associated with the 
proposals. 
 

3. That, following the conclusion of the consultation, the proposals be 
submitted to Overview and Scrutiny Management Board for review 
before final determination by Cabinet.  
 

4. That ongoing scrutiny of the implementation of the proposals be 
undertaken by the Health Select Commission. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 05/07/17 

21. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 The Chair reported that he had received a request to change the date of 
the next Overview and Scrutiny Management Board from 26 July 2017 to 
accommodate another meeting. To this end, he proposed that the Board’s 
next meeting take place on Wednesday 2 August 2017 at 11.00a.m. 
 
Resolved:- 
 
That the date and time of the next meeting be Wednesday 2 August 2017 
at 11.00a.m.  
 

 

Page 54



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 02/08/17  

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
2nd August, 2017 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Steele (in the Chair); Councillors Brookes, Clark, Cowles, 
Cusworth, Evans, Mallinder, Napper, Sheppard, Short, Walsh and Wyatt. 
 

Apologies for absence:- Apologies were received from Councillors  .  
 
22. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS HELD ON 21 JUNE AND 5 

JULY 2017  
 

 Resolved:- 
 
That the minutes of the meetings held on 21 June and 5 July 2017 be 
approved as true and correct records of the proceedings.  
 

23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 There were no declarations of interest by Members or officers in respect 
of any item on the agenda.  
 

24. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  
 

 There were no questions from the public or press.  
 

25. CORPORATE PLAN 2016/17 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 

 Consideration was given to a report detailing performance against the 
targets and priorities within the Corporate Plan 2016-17 for the final 
quarter of the year from January to March 2017.  
 
The Performance Report and Performance Scorecard, set out in 
Appendices A and B to the report, provided an analysis of the Council’s 
current performance against 14 key delivery outcomes and 103 
measures. The report was based on the current position of available data, 
along with an overview of progress on key projects and activities which 
also contributed towards the delivery of the Corporate Plan. 
 
It was noted that, at the end of the final quarter (January – March 2017), 
33 measures had either met or had exceeded the target set in the 
Corporate Plan. Although this represented only 31.4% of the total number 
of measures in the Plan, it equated to 49.3% of the total number of 
indicators where data was available or where targets had been set. A total 
of 27 (40.3% of those measured in the quarter) performance measures 
had not hit their target for the year (25.7% overall).  
 
Consideration was also given to the Asset Management Plan 
Improvement Report (AMIP) and associated scorecard which set out the 
progress on delivering the AMIP.  

Page 55



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 02/08/17 

 
Members took the opportunity to review the performance report, narrative 
and data and identified a number of areas for questioning, which 
included:- 
 

• Was it justifiable to disband the Step-Down Panel? In response, it 
was explained that the Panel was being used as part of process 
and decision making responsibility lay with Team Managers 
working with Early Help. It was confirmed that the re-referral rate at 
the end of June 2017 was 15% 

• Many measures marked as red (not on target) had a downward 
direction of travel and did that reflect more effort being put into 
keeping measures on target rather than getting others on target. In 
response, it was confirmed that the large workloads in Children and 
Young People’s Services and Adult Social Care had determined 
where efforts were to be focused, rather than attempting to 
maintain performance.  

• Was the rapid increase in the number of victims/survivors 
accessing post-abuse support services a sign of improvement? In 
response, it was confirmed that this was a good thing and with the 
number of prosecutions expected to increase, it was important to 
ensure that the right services were in the right place.  

• What had been put in place to reduce rates of persistent 
absenteeism? In response, it was confirmed that this had been a 
significant focus through Early Help and Family Support Workers.  

• What explanation was there for the decline in performance in 
respect of successful completion of drug treatment? It was 
explained that trends in respect of smoking were heading in the 
right direction, but there were concerns regarding suicide rates and 
weight management, with the latter continuing to be an acute issue 
for Rotherham. 

• Concerns were expressed that performance data in respect of 
adults with learning disabilities in employment was on a downward 
trend. It was explained that, whilst on a downtrend, performance 
was still good when compared to statistical neighbours.  

• Clarification was sought in respect of the problems with discharges 
from hospital. It was explained that the Indicator was always going 
to be a challenging one to meet, and whilst social worker delayed 
discharges were okay, there were issues with hospital delayed 
discharges. It was confirmed that two specialists had undertaken a 
delayed discharges review and made recommendations to the A&E 
Delivery Board with a new discharges plan.  

• Concerns were expressed in respect of the decline in performance 
for undertaking carers assessments. It was explained that there 
had been some systems issues and it was recognised that there 
was a need to get better at carer assessments and improve the 
experience of carers. This would involve looking at respite, welfare 
and technology too. 

• Reference was made to the increase in waiting times for Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services and assurances were sought 

Page 56



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 02/08/17  

 

that targets were achievable. In response, it was confirmed that the 
target was achievable and a lot of work had been done with 
colleagues at RDaSH to get accurate information. It was noted that 
the CCG and Council were working closely together to get the 
situation improved. 

• Concerns were expressed at the drop in footfall in the town centre 
and assurances were sought as to whether there were any plans in 
place to protect town centre businesses and put on more events. In 
response, Members were referred to the impending publication of 
the Town Centre Masterplan which aimed to address the issue of 
reduced footfall. It was noted that it had been a concern for a while 
and with the proposed introduction of a Public Space Protection 
Order for the town centre to address anti-social behaviour issues.  

• Concerns were expressed in respect of funding of voluntary sector 
groups and providers and whether the Council and the Safer 
Rotherham Partnership would consider increasing funding. In 
response, it was explained that a lot of work had been done locally, 
especially in respect of the reporting of incidences of domestic 
abuse, which had been the priority area for the Partnership.  

• Clarification was sought in respect of the criteria applied for 
repairing potholes on roads across the Borough. In response, it 
was explained that the target in plan was in respect of road repairs 
(repairs and re-surfacing) where additional investment had been 
targeted.  

• Concern was expressed that targets had been missed in respect of 
the number of new homes delivered in the Borough and what 
impact this had had on income through Council Tax and New 
Homes Bonus. In response, it was confirmed that the Council was 
looking for more innovative ways to deliver housing, including the 
conversion of derelict buildings, office space and empty homes and 
whether that would enable the draw down of funds from the Empty 
Homes Bonus. 

• What lessons had been learned from the recent report on Adult 
Learning and how could the Council ensure that the issues cited 
were not repeated? In response, it was confirmed that the Authority 
was delivering an expensive service that did not meet the needs of 
the local economy or service users. The challenge now was to 
identify the right provider within the Borough and commission the 
right courses, with the right costs, that delivered for local people 
and local businesses.  

• Clarification was sought in respect of the length of time given to 
landlords to comply with the requirements of the Selective 
Licensing Scheme to bring properties back up to standard. In 
response, it was confirmed that this would depend upon the 
category of hazards found.  

• Assurances were sought in respect of how effectively the Council 
dealt with complaints. In response, it was confirmed that a review 
of the approach to customer services across the Council would be 
required, but it was important to note that the number of 
compliments being received was on the increase.  

Page 57



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 02/08/17 

• Concerns were expressed regarding the level of spend on agency 
staff in the Authority and Members asked for information on what 
was being done to reduce the spend incurred in this area. In 
response, the work being undertaken by Scrutiny Members was 
referenced as being important in challenging the organisation. It 
was recognised that there would continue to be some need for 
agency staff and reference was made specifically to likely 
increases in Adult Social Care to address vacancies due to senior 
management absences.  

 
In summary the Chair concluded that the Board had thoroughly 
scrutinised the performance data and had found that there was a mixed 
picture of performance across the Authority. 
 
Resolved:- 
 
1. That the Corporate Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 of 2016-
17 be noted. 
 

2. That Improving Lives Select Commission undertake scrutiny in 
respect of Adult Learning. 
 

3. That Cabinet Members be invited to attend Select Commission 
meetings where performance information is to be scrutinised.  

 
26. SHEFFIELD TO ROTHERHAM TRAM TRAIN PROJECT - UPDATE  

 
 Councillor Lelliott, Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy, and 

Steve Mullett, Principal Project Manager from South Yorkshire Passenger 
Transport Executive, attended the meeting to provide an update on the 
Sheffield to Rotherham Tram Train Project. 
 
The Board had requested an update in light of the report from the National 
Audit Office which had identified concerns in respect of the rising costs 
and delays of the project. 
 
It was confirmed that the project was led by the Department for Transport 
(DfT) and Network Rail and was not the responsibility of SYPTE or 
Rotherham MBC.It was noted that Network Rail had admitted that the 
project had not been managed properly initially and it did not have the 
expertise to oversee the project. The prompt audit had ensured that the 
right people with expertise were in place, alongside a robust programme 
to deliver the project.  
 
The view was expressed that Network Rail and the DfT should never have 
got into that position and that the approach for any engineering project 
should involve the commissioning of a report to identify the works required 
and associated costs, rather than stumbling across them whilst in the 
midst of the works. Whilst it was accepted that this was the responsibility 
of Network Rail and DfT, it was noted by the Cabinet Member that by 

Page 58



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 02/08/17  

 

2018 Rotherham would have a tram train which connected the town to 
Sheffield City Centre.  
 
It was further noted that DfT had recognised the value of learning from the 
project and it was that learning which had ensured that the project 
progressed. Other cities were now looking at the technology and 
approaches adopted.  
 
The Board thanked the Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy 
and Steve Mullett for their attendance and requested that a further report 
be brought back at a later date detailing the outcomes of learning from the 
project.  
 
Resolved:- 
 
1. That the update be noted.  
 

2. That a further report be submitted to Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board detailing the outcomes of learning from the 
tram train project.  

 
27. PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER (PSOP) FOR ROTHERHAM 

TOWN CENTRE  
 

 Consideration was given to a briefing paper submitted on behalf of the 
Safer Rotherham Partnership in respect of a proposed Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO) for Rotherham town centre.  
 
It was noted that concerns had been raised by town centre businesses, 
the public, Ward Members, partners, public forums, the Town Centre 
Partnerships and others in respect of anti-social behaviour in Rotherham 
town centre. The identified issues related to persistent street drinking, 
littering, dogs running free (unleashed), people sleeping rough, rowdy and 
inconsiderate behaviour and drug related issues.  
 
Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
enabled local authorities to address issues of anti-social behaviour in 
public spaces by the use of a PSPO. It was noted that the proposal for the 
town centre served to target individuals and groups that had consistently 
behaved badly. In order to introduce the PSPO, two conditions would 
need to be met:- 
 

• that activity within a public place within the Council’s area had had 
a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or it 
was likely that activities would be carried on in a public place within 
that area and that they would have such an effect; and 

• that the effect, or likely effect, of the activities is, or was likely to be, 
of a persistent or continuing nature, is, or was likely to be, such as 
to make the activities unreasonable, and justified the restrictions 
imposed by the notice. 

Page 59



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 02/08/17 

Consultation would take place on the proposed Order containing the 
following proposed prohibitions:- 
 

• behaving in such a way or using language that causes, or is likely 
to cause, harassment, alarm or distress to another person 

• drinking alcohol other than in a licensed premises or event 

• spitting saliva or any other product from the mouth 

• face to face fundraising and marketing carried out by organisations 
without prior written permission of the Council 

• failing to keep a dog on a leash and under control 

• using or carrying controlled drugs otherwise than in accordance 
with a valid prescription 

• littering 

• using a vehicle to cause a nuisance by gathering in groups, playing 
loud music or otherwise impacting the quality of life in the locality 

• urinating or defecating in a public place 
 
Members queried why a proposal for a PSPO had not been brought 
forward for consideration at an earlier point. In response, the Cabinet 
Member for Waste, Roads and Community Safety indicated that she had 
pushed for a proposal to be brought forward as quickly as possible. 
Following on, the Strategic Director of Regeneration and Environment 
also indicated that it had been brought forward as the earliest opportunity 
and apologised if Members felt that this was not sufficiently early.  
 
The Chair indicated that Members expected such a proposal to be subject 
to a minimum period of six weeks’ consultation and for a wider body of 
interested individuals and groups to be targeted in the consultation 
exercise. The Cabinet Member for Waste, Roads and Community Safety 
indicated that she wanted to hear what people had to say and was also 
aware of a lot of the commentary that had been provided and public 
dialogue on town centre issues.  
 
There was a broad level of support amongst Members for the introduction 
of a PSPO, although some concern was expressed in respect of the 
inclusion of Clifton Park in the Order, specifically with regard to the 
consumption of alcohol which may prevent families from enjoying a bottle 
of wine when having a picnic in the park. Officers welcomed such 
feedback from Members and explained that the final Order may not apply 
to both the town centre and Clifton Park, as it was important to 
understand such issues before instituting the PSPO. Following on from 
this point, Members highlighted the importance of distinguishing drinking 
alcohol from drunkenness.  
 
Members sought clarification as to whether the proposed PSPO would 
assist in restricting demonstrations in the town centre. It was explained 
that the Order was not about controlling protests, but about controlling 
behaviours. The PSPO would apply 24 hours a day and seven days a 
week, so anyone attending a protest would have to comply with the 
provisions of the Orders.  

Page 60



 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - 02/08/17  

 

Resolved:- 
 
1. That the briefing on the Public Spaces Protection Order for 
Rotherham Town Centre be noted.  
 

2. That the final proposal for Cabinet in respect of the Public Spaces 
Protection Order be subject to pre-decision scrutiny.  
 

3. That, following implementation of the Public Spaces Protection 
Order for the town centre, monitoring of the effectiveness of the 
Order be undertaken by Improving Places Select Commission.  

 
28. YOUTH CABINET/YOUNG PEOPLE'S ISSUES  

 
 The Chair indicated that there were no issues requiring report to Members 

at the meeting.  
 

29. WORK IN PROGRESS  
 

 The Chair invited the Chairs of the Select Commissions to provide reports 
on their activities and future plans.  
 
Councillor Cusworth, Vice-Chair of Improving Lives Select Commission, 
reported that there had been two meetings in July 2017 where Members 
had reviewed a report on domestic abuse and made a number of 
recommendations to secure progress in this area of work. She further 
reported that she was leading a review on Safeguarding and Corporate 
Parenting, which would include the annual reports of both Local 
Safeguarding Boards. In addition to this, the Improving Lives Select 
Commission would be looking at the Medium Term Financial Strategy in 
respect of Children and Young People’s Services, work being undertaken 
in respect of children missing from home and Home to School transport.  
 
Councillor Mallinder, Chair of Improving Places Select Commission, 
reported on the meeting that had taken place in July 2017 where they had 
reviewed fire safety in the context of the Grenfell Tower tragedy. In 
addition to this, the Commission had reviewed the Town Centre 
Masterplan proposals and work supporting the future cultural offer for the 
borough. 
 
Councillor Evans, Chair of Health Select Commission, reported on the 
meeting that had taken place on 28th June 2017 where Members had 
reviewed the Place Plan and the Adult Social Care Performance Plan. 
 
Resolved:- 
 
That the updates on the activities of the Select Commissions be noted.  
 
 
 

Page 61



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 02/08/17 

30. TO DETERMINE ANY ITEM WHICH THE CHAIRMAN IS OF THE 
OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY.  
 

 The Chair reported that there were no items of business requiring urgent 
consideration at the meeting.  
 

31. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 The Chair confirmed that the next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board would take place on Wednesday, 6th September, 
2017 at 11.00am.  
 

 

Page 62



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 04/07/17  

 

COUNCIL SEMINAR 
4th July, 2017 

 
Present:- Councillor Lelliott (in the Chair); Councillors Atkin, Buckley, Cooksey, 
Elliott, Fenwick-Green, Jarvis, Khan, McNeely, Marriott, Napper, Reeder, Short, 
Taylor, John Turner, Walsh and Wyatt. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Albiston, Clark, Elliott, Ellis, 
Pitchley, Simpson and Watson. 
 
   TRANSPORT INTERCHANGE  

 
 Councillor Lelliott, Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy and 

Chair, welcomed Ian Ashmore, Manager, Transportation, Highways and 
Design, and the following representatives from South Yorkshire 
Passenger Transport Executive:- 
 
Ben Gilligan, Director of Public Transport 
Gavin Bland, Principal Project Manager 
Rachel Cowling, Communications Officer – External Relations 
 
With the aid of a powerpoint presentation, a brief overview of the 
Rotherham Transport Interchange refurbishment was given as follows:- 
 
Background 

− Car park built in late 1960s, refurbished in 1995 and passed over to 
SYPTE to maintain 

− Structural repairs required  

− Entrance bridge replaced in 2012 with planning permission granted in 
2013 for a refurbishment 

− Alternative development options considered but not progressed due 
to the lack of funding 

 
Fire 15th May 2016 at 10.50 p.m. 

− Fire started on board a single decker bus - Interchange re-opened 
21st May 2016 but Stand A6 has been out of action since 

 
Refurbishment 

− Opportunity to address car park repairs and modernise Interchange at 
the same time 

− Consultation sessions with customers during May 

− SYPTE had identified what works could be delivered within the funds 
available 

 
Proposals included 

− Refurbished car park with new external cladding 

− Lighter environment 

− New CCTV 

− Refurbished fixtures and fittings 

Page 63 Agenda Item 5



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 04/07/17 

 

− New ceiling cladding 

− Opening up of ‘C’ platform 

− New information provision 

− An overall more welcoming environment 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

• Given the recent issues with regard to cladding, there needed to be 
clear and explicit information available of the materials that would be 
used in the refurbishment 
 

• The need for a visible security presence in the Interchange 
  

• Ensure that all staff were first aid trained 
 

• Ward Councillors should be kept informed 
 

• Work was taking place with the Architect and Building Control to 
ensure compliance with Building and Fire Regulations in relation to 
the materials used 

 

• Departure charges paid by bus  companies for use of the Interchange 
calculated upon the number of departures 

 

• Comments made by the Youth Cabinet had been taken into 
consideration within the proposals 

 

• The second entrance canopy option reflected the railway station and 
Riverside House frontages 

 

• Discussions were still taking place with regard to sprinkler systems 
 

• There was a CCTV camera operator based in the bus station as well 
as use of the resources in Sheffield 

 

• Consideration was being given to the installation of solar panels on 
the upper half of the car park resulting in it being closed off to the 
public and hopefully providing anti-suicide barriers 

 

• Suggested erection of signage advising of the Samaritans contact 
number 

 

• Allowance within the costings for the provision of electric charging 
points 

 
The Chair thanked Members for their attendance and Ian, Ben, Gavin and 
Rachel for their presentation.   
 

 

Page 64



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 11/07/17  

 

COUNCIL SEMINAR 
11th July, 2017 

 
Present:- Councillor Roche (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Bird, Clark, 
Cooksey, Cusworth, Elliot, Evans, McNeely, Mallinder, Reeder, Russell, Senior, 
Sheppard, Simpson, Steele and Walsh. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Albiston, Allen, Jarvis, Jepson 
and Williams. 
 
   CARE HOMES  

 
 Councillor Roche, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health and 

Chairman, welcomed AnneMarie Lubanski, Strategic Director for Adult 
Care and Housing, and Jacqui Clark, Commissioning, who gave a brief 
overview of Rotherham’s Adults Residential/Nursing Care Homes quality.   
 
Members were reminded that the information to be shared was to be 
considered as confidential due to the commercial sensitivity of the subject 
matter. 
 
With the aid of powerpoint the presentation highlighted:- 
 

− The number of care homes in the Independent Care Sector in 
Rotherham 

− Current Care Quality Commission (CQC) ratings 

− Issues raised by the CQC during inspections 

− Regional picture 

− The status of Adult Social Care Services nationally 

− Quality Board for all Registered Services 

− CQC Powers and Actions 
 
Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/clarified:- 
 

• The timescale set by the CQC for an establishment deemed in need 
of improvement 
 

• Powers of the Council as opposed to the CQC 
 

• Role of the Council’s Dedicated Contract Compliance Officers 
 

• Care Home staff competencies/turnover of staff 
 

• Role of the Residential Manager and the impact on a Home when a 
postholder left 

 

• Contact with other commissioning authorities regarding the current 
position of care homes providers/contractor’s duty of candour 

Page 65



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 11/07/17 

 

 

• Specific Improvement Contract Plan for each Home - a Contract 
Compliance Officer would look for evidence of improvement which 
was then documented 

 

• Newly formed Quality Board would look at good practice 
 
The Chair thanked Members for their attendance and AnneMarie and 
Jacqui for their presentation.   
 
It was agreed that the Regional Head of the CQC be invited to a seminar 
on their inspection framework for care homes. 
 

 

Page 66



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 18/07/17  

 

COUNCIL SEMINAR 
18th July, 2017 

 
Present:- Councillor Atkin (in the Chair); Councillors Bird, Cooksey, Elliot, Jarvis, 
McNeely, Mallinder, Reeder, Senior, Short, Simpson, John Turner, Walsh and Wyatt. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allen, Beck, Jepson, Napper, 
Pitchley and Sheppard. 
 
   THE PRINCE'S TRUST  

 
 Councillor Atkin, the Council’s representative on the South Yorkshire Fire 

Authority, welcomed Paul Newman, South Yorkshire Police, and Rhian 
Oxley, Team Leader, Prince's Trust Team Programme, who gave an 
overview of the Prince’s Trust programme as follows:- 
 

− Unique in South Yorkshire in that it was a joint Programme with both 
the Fire and Police Services 
 

− The third course was currently coming to an end.  It was far more 
successful in Rotherham than Barnsley due to the buy-in from 
agencies 

 

− The fourth course would start in September in Barnsley 
 

− Nominations were required of young people aged 16-25 years who 
were not in Employment, Education and Training (NEET) as well as 
any projects that would take one week to complete 
 

− The young people were recruited from recommendations, NEET and 
Job Centre Plus.  There were 15 young people per course together 
with 2 instructors – Rhian (Team Leader) and Paul 
 

− The desire was to have a bank of projects and people in Rotherham 
that could be used to make the programme more successful going 
forward.  Preferred projects would be those that would involve the 
young people meeting people/events they would not ordinarily come 
into contact with i.e. people with disabilities, tea dances etc. 
 

− 5 qualifications were achieved during the programme whilst 
embedding Maths and English throughout, working on the young 
person’s self-confidence and self-esteem and providing a safe 
environment for them to grow  The qualifications included Level 2 
Food Hygiene, Level 1 ISOH (Institute of Occupation Safety and 
Health) and Level 2 First Aid  
 

− It was a 12 weeks’ programme based at the Dearne Fire Station:- 
 
 
 

Page 67



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 18/07/17 

 

Week 1 – at the Fire station getting to know each other.  At the end of 
the week they had to compile a shopping list ready for Week 2 
 
Week 2 – residential at Edale – climbing, canoeing etc. and cooking 
what they had bought in Week 1 
 
Weeks 3 and 4 – return to the Fire Station looking at projects.  The 15 
split into 3 groups with a project for each group.  It was hoped they 
would find a project themselves if not the bank of nominated projects 
would be consulted.  At the end of week 4 there was a presentation to 
a “dragons den” scenario with the dragons there to advise and give 
constructive criticism.  The young people had the final say on the 
projects selected 
 
Fundraising took place for the projects e.g. raffles, sponsored walks 
with an average of £500 raised in a week 
 
Week 5 – deliver the week long project 
 
Week 6 – Back in the classroom preparing for work considering why it 
was important to be on time, wearing the right clothes for work, how to  
speak to people in a work scenario 
 
Weeks 7 and 8 – The young people were sent on 2 weeks’ work 
experience with welfare visits every couple of days 
 
Week 9 – Return to the Fire Station and work on a professional CV 
and interview skills.  Siemens at Wakefield provided members of staff 
who gave a presentation on CV writing, mock interviews and feedback 
provided.  Each young person, if met the qualifying criteria, received 
£40 per person to buy interview clothes 
 
Week 10 – Planning of the team challenge e.g. work with elderly 
people, people with disabilities, ex-military veterans, homeless  
 
Week 11 – Delivery of the team challenge and preparation for week 
12  
 
Week 12 – Graduation.  The ceremony for the current Rotherham 
group was Thursday, 27th July in the Town Hall.  The young people 
had to prepare a speech on what they had done over the past 12 
weeks, what their achievements had been, what they had found 
challenging.  Friends and family, Police/Fire colleagues, employers, 
colleges attended 

 

− Due to a change in funding there would now only be 2 programmes in 
Rotherham:- 

 
 Rotherham – 22nd January and 7th May 2018 
 Barnsley September 2017 

Page 68



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 18/07/17  

 

 
Extra funding was being sought to hopefully run another Rotherham 
programme in September 2017. 

 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

• Visits had been made to speak to staff at Carnson House and 
Clearways with visits planned to Job Centre Plus and Early Help 
Teams 
 

• Encourage the young people to contact their local Ward Councillor to 
discuss possible donation from their Community Leadership Fund 

 

• Dependent upon the young person’s family household income, bus 
fares could be paid through Barnsley College 

 

• Possible linkage with RotherFed 
 
The Chairman thanked Paul and Rhian for their presentation and 
Members for their attendance. 
 
An invitation was extended to All Members to attend the graduation 
ceremony on Thursday, 27th July in the Town Hall at 2.00 p.m. 
 
 

 

Page 69



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 21/07/17  

 

COUNCIL SEMINAR 
21st July, 2017 

 
Present:- Councillor Lelliott (in the Chair); Councillors Atkin, Beaumont, Cooksey, 
Cowles, Elliot, Jarvis, Khan, McNeely, Mallinder, Reeder, Russell, Short and 
Simpson. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allen and Jepson. 

 
   PARKING SERVICES  

 
 Councillor Lelliott, Cabinet Member for Jobs and the Local Economy, 

introduced Colin Knight, Head of Service – Highways, and Martin Beard, 
Parking Services Manager, who gave a brief overview of Parking Services 
and shared information in the form of a presentation. 
 
With the aid of powerpoint the presentation highlighted:- 
 

• Structure of the Service, including the Civil Enforcement Team and 
Appeals Team. 

• How the Service Operates. 

• Performance on the number of PCN’s issued, challenges received 
and PCNs cancelled. 

• PCN cancellation detail. 

• Untaxed/Abandoned vehicles – Activity from 1st January to 15th July, 
2017. 

• Parking Services Initiatives. 

• Kingdom trial – environmental enforcement. 

• Examples of actions that cannot be enforced by the Council. 
 
Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/clarified:- 
 

• Evaluation of the trial with Kingdom and monitoring of their activity, 
incentives and performance. 

• Efficient enforcement and extra resource for out of centre areas. 

• Scrutiny of activity by Improving Places Select Commission. 

• Careful consideration, sensitivity and low level enforcement as part of 
the events protocol. 

• Resident parking schemes. 

• Use of scratch cards by businesses. 

• CCTV enforcement action. 

• Action that could be taken by Parking Services and enforcement by 
the Police. 

• Tesco parking enforcement. 

• CCTV  and number of cameras in operation. 

• Blue badge renewals. 

• Condition of fire extinguishers and credit card machine in Wellgate 
Multi-Storey Car Park. 

Page 70



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 21/07/17 

 

• CCTV monitoring outside schools and use of ANPR technology. 

• Removal of non-registered vehicles. 

• Blocking of pavements by vehicles. 

• Helpfulness of the Civil Enforcement Team. 

• Lack of parking around the H.E. Campus at Doncaster Gate. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That Members be thanked for their attendance and Colin 
and Martin for their very informative presentation.   
 
(2)  That a briefing note be circulated to all Members on the current 
payment provisions for Wellgate Multi-Storey Car Park. 
 

 

Page 71



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 28/07/17  

 

COUNCIL SEMINAR 
28th July, 2017 

 
Present:- Councillor Read (in the Chair); Councillors Allcock, Atkin, Beaumont, 
Cooksey, Cowles, M. Elliott, Khan, Mallinder, Napper, Russell, Sansome, Simpson, 
Steele, Taylor, John Turner and Walsh. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allen, Beck, Jepson and 
Roche. 
 
   COUNCIL PLAN 2017-2020  

 
 Councillor Read, Leader of the Council, introduced Shokat Lal, Assistant 

Chief Executive, and Simon Dennis, Corporate Risk Manager, who gave a 
brief overview of the Council Plan 2017-2020 and shared information in 
the form of a presentation. 
 
With the aid of powerpoint the presentation highlighted:- 
 

− Why we had a Council Plan 

− Content of the Plan 

• Context of the Borough and the Council 

• Vision and Priorities 

• Values and Behaviours 

• Delivering our Vision  

• Working in Partnership 

• Managing our Performance 

• Our Plans (the 72 Indicators) 

− Performance Monitoring 

− Using and Monitoring the Plan 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

• 5 key themes:- 
Every child making the best start in life 
Every adult secure, responsible and empowered 
A strong community in a clean, safe environment 
Expanding opportunity, prosperity and planning for the future 
A modern efficient Council 

 

• Every theme had a Cabinet Member and Strategic Director lead 
 

• The targets were ambitious but not unrealistic for a local authority in 
Rotherham’s position and the funding available 
 

• Some of the targets were dependent upon work with the NHS 
particularly with regard to Adult Social Care 
 

• “Vision” was the standard Local Government terminology  

Page 72



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 28/07/17 

 

 

• Closer communication between the Corporate Plan and Council Plan 
 

• Need to update when a named officer left the Authority 
 

• Adult Social Care savings 
 

• The use of Libraries nationally for the purpose of book lending was 
falling but rising visitor numbers for other purposes – the Library 
Strategy looked at the wider issue of use 
 

• Difficult challenge with regard to agency costs particularly in 
Children’s Services.  The Workforce Management Board reviewed 
every request for an agency worker 
 

• Possible inclusion in the narrative of the effects of each Indicator 
 
The Leader thanked Members for their attendance and Shokat and Simon 
for their very informative presentation 
 
 

 

Page 73



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 01/08/17  

 

 

COUNCIL SEMINAR 
1st August, 2017 

 
Present:- Councillor Hoddinott (in the Chair); Councillors Beaumont, Bird, Clark, 
Cooksey, Cowles, Cusworth, B. Cutts, M. Elliott, Fenwick-Green, McNeely, Mallinder, 
Reeder, Russell, Sheppard, Steele, John Turner and Walsh. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beck, Jarvis, Jepson, 
Simpson and Taylor. 
 
  PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS  

 
 Councillor Hoddinott, Cabinet Member for Waste, Roads and Community 

Safety, introduced Sam Barstow, Head of Service for Community Safety, 
Resilience and Emergency Planning, and Steve Parry, Community Safety 
Manager, who gave a brief overview of the Public Spaces Protection 
Order for Rotherham Town Centre and Clifton Park.   
 
With the aid of powerpoint the presentation highlighted:- 
 
What is a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 

− Introduced by the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

− A Civil Order designed to address issues of anti-social behaviour in a 
specified location 

− To stop behaviour that has an impact on the quality of life of those in 
the locality 

− Councils, following consultation, can make local Orders designed to 
suit local need 

− Can create prohibitions or requirements 

− Designed to support local communities by addressing poor behaviour 

− Lasts for 3 years but can be renewed 
 
Why have one 

− Local businesses, Councillors and others say that they see anti-social 
behaviour in the Town Centre 

− The PSPO was another tool that could be used to set clear standards 
and reinforce positive behaviours 

− Supports the vibrancy of, and the vision for, the Town Centre 
 
What were the proposed prohibitions on the Order 

− Behaving in such a way or using language that causes, or was likely 
to cause, harassment, alarm or distress to another person 

− Drinking alcohol other than in a licenced premise or event 

− Spitting salvia or any other product from the mouth 

− Face-to-face fundraising and marketing carried out by organisations 
without permission of the Council 

− Failing to keep a dog on a leash and under control 

− Using or carrying controlled drugs otherwise than in accordance with 
a valid prescription 

Page 74



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 01/08/17 

 

 

− Littering 

− Using a vehicle to cause a nuisance by gathering in groups, playing 
loud music or otherwise impacting the quality of life in the locality 

− Urinating or defecating in a public place 
 
When could it happen? 

− Subject to Cabinet’s approval, following consultation, the PSPO would 
need to go live on 20th October, 2017 

− It would replace the current Designated Public Protection Order which 
was due to expire 

− It would last until 2020 but could be extended/amended 
 
Who would enforce the PSPO? 

− Police Officers 

− Police Community Support Officers 

− Other designated RMBC Officers (to be decided) 
 
What were the consequences of breaching the PSPO? 

− A Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) of £100 

− Failure to pay the FPN would result in prosecution at the Magistrates’ 
Court 
Maximum fine of £500 if the breach was solely related to drinking 
alcohol in a public place 
For everything else, the maximum fine would be £1,000 (plus Court 
costs) 

− Successful prosecution recorded a criminal conviction 
 
The Next Steps 

− Public consultation open until 16th August, 2017 

− Drop-in sessions on 1st and 10th August, 2017 

− Liaise with South Yorkshire Police and other partners 

− Formal Cabinet decision making meeting on 11th September, 2017 
 
Issues in your Ward? 

− Contact Sam.Barstow@rotherham.gov.uk 07748143370 

− Warm weather prevalence – address for next year 

− The need would be reviewed on an on-going basis 
 
Addressing Anti-Social Behaviour 

− Many tools and powers at the Council’s disposal 

− Need to be creative 

− One size did not fit every Ward 
 
Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/clarified:- 
 

• The Legislation allowed for Councils to offer a financial incentive for 
early payment of a Fixed Penalty Notice 
 

Page 75



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 01/08/17  

 

 

• Consultation was in the form of press release, inclusion on the 
website, the holding of drop-in sessions at the market place as well as 
contact with local businesses, business groups and representative 
bodies 

 

• Signage to be provided around the Town Centre 
 

• Consultation was taking place on no alcohol consumption in Clifton 
Park and no dogs off the leash in the Park or the Town Centre 

 

• A PSPO was the step before somebody caused public anti-social 
behaviour 

 

• The Legislation stated that any income derived from Fixed Penalty 
Notices should be used within the area to support the prevention of 
anti-social behaviour, provision of extra bins etc. 

 

• A PSPO was more flexible than the Designated Public Places Order 
(DPPO) and could include different conditions, prohibitions and 
requirements; a DPPO required a Police Officer to enforce it. A PSPO 
could be enforced by a Police Community Support Officer or a Council 
Officer 

 

• Displacement had not been found to be a problem, however, it 
needed to be monitored and the reason why a 12 month review was 
proposed 

 

• Currently it was only proposed for the Town Centre and Clifton Park 
 

• The PSPO would be 24 hours 
 

• The DPPO had been used to great success by the Police during the 
night time economy and football matches 

 

• Begging could be included in the Order 
 

It was noted that the consultation period would end on 16th August.  The 
findings would be compiled and submitted for pre-Scrutiny following by 
submission to Cabinet in September. 
 
Councillor Hoddinott thanked Members for their attendance and Sam and 
Steve for their informative presentation. 
 

 

Page 76



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 29/08/17  

 

COUNCIL SEMINAR 
29th August, 2017 

 
Present:- Councillor Hoddinott (in the Chair); Councillors Albiston, Atkin, Beaumont, 
Clark, Cooksey, Cowles, Cusworth, M. Elliott, Ellis, McNeely, Sansome, Senior, 
Simpson, Steele and Walsh. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Jarvis, Jepson, Mallinder, 
Pitchley, Roche, Russell and Short. 
 
   HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT  

 
 Councillor Hoddinott, Cabinet Member for Waste, Roads and Community 

Safety, introduced Damian Wilson, Strategic Director of Regeneration and 
Environment, and Martin Raper, Street Scene Manager, who gave a 
presentation on the consultation that was to take place on changes to the 
Policy for Home to School Transport for Rotherham including post-16 
students and children with Special Educational Needs or Disability 
(SEND). 
 
It was noted that, even although Transport sat within the Regeneration 
and Environment portfolio, the consultation was being conducted in 
conjunction with Adult Services and Children and Young Peoples 
Services Directorates and the respective Cabinet Member leads. 
 
With the aid of powerpoint the presentation highlighted:- 
 

− The Council’s statutory duty to provide education transport to eligible 
students under the Education Act 1996, Equality Act 2010, The Home 
to School Travel and Transport Guidance 2014, Children and Families 
Act 2014 and Post-16 Transport to Education and Training Guidance 
2014 
 

− Current Service delivery cost - £3.3M 
 

− Key issues - ensure continuation of suitable, safe assistance for 
eligible children, Council facing significant financial challenges 

 

− New Policy options to consider 
 

• Eligibility for children and young people 
Eligibility “needs” criteria 
Individual transport needs were assessed against criteria, age, 
distance, mobility 
Ability to travel independent, sensory, impairment severe, social, 
emotional, behaviour difficulties 
No requirement to review or re-assess transport 
Separate sections for mainstream and special needs transport 
 
 

Page 77



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 29/08/17 

 

Consultation 

− That the clear special needs criteria contained within current 
guidance for determining the eligibility for transport 
assistance be updated, published and applied consistently 
when assessing eligibility 

− That young people with lower levels of special educational 
needs were provided with the appropriate level of support for 
their individual needs.  This may include independent travel 
training, bus passes and Personal Transport Budgets (PTB) 

− That continuation of transport assistance was conditional on 
a review and regular re-assessment 

− That one single Policy be developed which outlined eligibility 
criteria and a clearer appeals process for all parents/carers 
who felt their child was entitled to transport assistance 
through the Policy 
 

• Independent Travel Training (ITT) 
A process that trained individuals on how to travel 
Travelling independently was a life skill 
£700 to independently travel train a young person 
Bus pass £300 
Average annual cost of a taxi/minibus within Rotherham was 
£3,576 per young person 
 
Consultation 

− To develop and promote ITT as a central service in 
Rotherham and apply it in particular at transitional stages 
(e.g. Y6 to Y7 transfer) 

− To consider whether to make transport support dependent 
on the parents/carers agreeing to an assessment of the 
young person’s suitability for ITT 

− To consider whether the Council should offer and promote 
alternative options to compliment transport arrangements 
such as bicycle loans/grants, walking buses and bus passes 

 

• Personal Transport Budgets (PTBs) 
Sum of money provided by the Council 
Allowed families arrangements for travel thereby increasing 
choice and flexibility 
Paid monthly in advance into the parent/carer’s bank account to 
enable them to choose and plan personal transport 
 
Consultation 

− To establish a PTB scheme as the Council’s preferred offer 
of transport support for families or children with special 
educational needs in Rotherham where it provides increased 
value for money to the Council and provides greater choice 
and flexibility for families 
 

Page 78



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 29/08/17  

 

• Post-16 Transport Policies 
Provided up to and including the academic year the young person 
turns 19 years of age 
Individual timetables 
Single person taxi provision 
 
Consultation 

− To replace direct transport arrangements for those students 
over the age of 16 with special educational needs and 
disabilities with personal transport budgets as a first option 

− To promote ITT and use of bus passes to compliment the 
use of PTBs 
 

• Family Benefits 
Some parents/carers were in receipt of benefits related to mobility 
– Disability Living Allowance (DLA) 
Motability Scheme vehicles assisting the child/young person to 
attend education 
 
Consultation 

− Where families were in receipt of DLA Mobility, a 
contribution was made towards any travel assistance.  The 
consultation would ask what would be a reasonable 
contribution for specific elements of an overall package of 
support to the child/young person 

− The Council would work with the families to develop a 
shared transport approach 

 
Consultation Plan 

− We will inform and engage with all impacted groups 

− We will listen to those impacted by the services, families, caregivers, 
schools and the Rotherham Parents Forum 

− The process would gain understanding of views relating to this 
consultation as well as gaining general feedback 

− Service users and front line providers would be our experts who would 
provide feedback on how they considered the service could be 
delivered 

− Engagement would take place using a combination of focus groups, 
drop-in sessions and online feedback 

− Communications around the proposed changes and the subsequent 
consultation would be undertake using a combination of mechanisms, 
including social media, traditional media, printed material as well as 
direct communications 

 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

• The cost of transporting children and young people to out of Borough 
schools 
 

Page 79



REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 29/08/17 

 

• Ability of families to submit mileage claims 
 

• Work with families to make use of the benefits they received for their 
child to agree/contribute financially to a transport plan 

 

• Inclusion of breakclauses/ability to extend in the recently awarded taxi 
contracts 

 

• Ongoing revenue savings target 
 

• Wherever possible the use of transport was maximised but in some 
cases the individual’s needs did not allow that to happen 

 

• Review underway with Children and Young People’s Services to 
ascertain where shared transport was appropriate 

 

• The current Appeal process and the need for a successful applicant to 
re-apply annually 

 

• Transport to visits by Looked After Children to their birth parents were 
paid for by Children and Young People’s Services 

 

• Transport to out of catchment schools (parental choice) was not paid 
for if the applicant did not meet the current criteria 

 

• Whatever revised arrangements were made with parents had to be for 
the benefit of the Authority 

 

• The consultation was primarily Home to School Transport and the 
costs associated with children with Special Educational Needs and 
Care Plans 

 

• It would enable families to have more flexibility to arrange transport 
themselves which currently was not available 

 

• Presently there were different policies for different groups of children – 
this was an attempt to bring them altogether into one 

 

• Any changes should be done in a timely manner in order to give 
parents and the young people time to adapt to the new arrangements 

 

• Essential that all aspects of the consultation/engagement were correct 
 

• Any operator who wished to sub-contract had to seek approval from 
the Authority.  Spotchecks were carried out 

 
It was noted that a report was to be submitted to the Cabinet and 
Commissioners’ Decision Making meeting to commence the consultation. 
 

Page 80



 REPORT FOR INFORMATION - 29/08/17  

 

Councillor Hoddinott thanked Members for their attendance and Damian 
and Martin for their informative presentation. 
 
 

 

Page 81


	Agenda
	1 Health Select Commission
	2 Improving Lives Select Commission
	Improving Lives Select Commission 25th July 2017

	3 Improving Places Select Commission
	4 Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 2nd August 2017

	5 Reports for Information
	Council Seminar 11th July 2017 Care Homes
	Council Seminar 18th July 2017 Princes Trust
	Council Seminar 21st July 2017 Parking Services
	Council Seminar 28th July Council Plan
	Council Seminar 1st August Public Spaces Protection Orders
	Council Seminar 29th August Home to School Transport


